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investment Manager’s statement
Dear Unitholder,

The pandemic swept the globe in March 2020 causing unprecedented health and economic concerns.
Although policymakers had recourse to unprecedented stimulus measures to limit the economic impact of
the Covid-19 pandemic, the global economy went into a recession during the calendar year 2020.

Policy meaasures Iimited the negative spill-overs from the "real” economy to the financial markets and major
U8 equity indices reached record highs during the second quarter of the financial year, Technolegy and
software were among the lop-performing sectors amidst the hehavioural shifts towards digitalisation during
the first half of the year although & rotation into value and cyclical stocks was observed in the second kalf.
Yields picked up in 2021 following persistently high inflation readings from supply-chain disruptions and
policy measures.

In Mauritius, the closure of the domestic frontier presented significant headwinds to economic growth given
the country's dependence on the leisure and hospitalily sector. With easing of restrictions and an
acceleration in the pace of vaccine roll-out, there was a positive shift in investor sentiment in 2021; the
SEMDEX prolonged its 2021 bull-run afier the budget speech held in June 2021 which among others, laid
out the strategy in terms of easing of travel resfrictions and paving the way for a bounce bagk of the tourism
industry. Domestic yields increased significantly during thal particular month,

Despite the uncertain conditions that prevailed during the year, we proved once again that we remain a
reliable partner for ali our stekeholders; our investment philosophy and processes ensured that our in-house
funds delivered solid returns relative to their pre-sei objectives. At equity level, performances were driven
by our positioning in quality securities, target allocations te technology and software sectors, our diversified
approach and, disciplined monitoring and execution.

Global economic activity has rebounded strongly since the onset of the pandemic but the environment
remains challenging amid the mutations of the Covid-19 virus, inflation cencerns and Fed’s potential
tapering ofits assets purchase. In the US, the labour market has improved significantly and despite inflation
readings remaining high, the Fed views this situation as transitory. As economic indicators trend towards
the Fed's objectives amid higher inflationary pressures, tapering may raise stock market volatility. [n the
face of those challenges, we remain focused on our funds' long-term objectives and belleve that potential

catalysis such as stronger economic activity, upbeat profits and continued policy support may be positive
for the stock market.

We would like o thank the management team and all the stakeholders for their contribution towards
enhancing the value of our funds as well as the unithalders for their confidence in us.

L
)

SBM Mauritius Asset Managers Lid =3

September 2021
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Invesiment Manager’'s Report

Performance commentary

For the financial year ended 30 June 2021, SBM Universal Fund registerad & return of 19.1% against 2
benchmark performance of 16.8%. Net assets increasad from MUR 357.1M o0 MUR 393.0M over FY21
with net asset value per unit (NAV) increasing from MUR 26.41 to MUR 31.03.

As an indication of the domestic equity market performance, SEMDEX and SEMTRI closed at 1,883.22
poinis and 7,274.51 points, equivalent to 12.1% and 13.8%, respectively during the financial year 2021. On

the glehal froni, the MSCI All Country World index registered a performance of 37.2% in USD terms,
equivalent to 46.2% in MUR terms.

ANNUALISED RETURN

SINCE
1 YEAR 3 YEAR 5 YEAR INCEPTION
SBM Univarsal Fund (%) +18,1 +5.4 +8.1 +8.5
Benchmark (%) +16.8 +5.4 +8.9 +8.0
FY 21 FY 20 FY 18 FY 18
SBM Universal Fund (%) +19.1 -1.8 +0.3 +4.7
Benchmark (%) +16.8 -1.5 +1.7 +8,1

As al 30/6/21, the benchmark is a composite of 30% SEMDEX, 40% * year Government of Mauritius Treasury Bill rate and 30% MSCI
Worid Index. The SEMDEX is a capitafisation weighted index including aii shares traded on the Siock Exchange of Mauritius, The
MSCI Warld index is a free float-adjusted market capitalisation weighted index that is designed to measure the performance of

ceveloped equity markets, Computation of benchmark retum is based on the observations 2s at month-end and the blended
pericrmance of the benchmark reflzcts monthly rebalancing.

VALUE OF MUR 100,900 INVESTED SINCE INCEPTION
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Past _performance is not a relizble indicator of future performance and unit prices may fluctuate with prevailing market
copci:tions and current performance may be higher or lower than the performance cited. For more information on the fund's
objectives, risks, and strategy, please consult

its Prospectus, Latest unit prices are available on the website:
https:J’Inbfc.sbmgrol.!p.mu!mam!ﬁnancial-productsffunds-performance

The graph ilustrates the perormance of MUR 100,000 invested in tha Fund at inception. The growih of investment amount assumes
that dividends, if any, are re<nvested and does not include saies charge but fakes into account tha running expenses of the Fund as
well a5 taxes and other deduciions.
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Positioning and strategy . .
The strategic allocation of the Fund is based on  ASSET ALLOCATION (% net as:ﬂe;g&om oE
the Fund's invesiment objectives and the Domestic squities 8.7 31 g
benchmark as per its Prospecius. At the star of Int;?na;ionacge dtes T 359 331
the financial year, the Fund was underweight in Domesti *"yodqh;:o—ruemmm - 25'2 30‘?
domestic eguities but gradually increased AEO*QSZ*EJ=§V@;tmé B PP o

Of vy Frymid i i L i i {1 S . -
exposure to 31.4% amid opportunities in certain Cash & cash aquivalents. .. e 48

segments of the markel. Following the uptrend in
yields and opportunities in the corporate bond
segment, it raised its exposurs in domastic fixed
income to 30.7%. Internationally, some profit
bookings were raalised following the rise in 10Y
yields but the porfolio remained overweight to
this asset class.

rom & geographical perspective, the Fund was
underweight in Mauritius against the benchmark
mainly on account of an aflocation of 31.4% in
domestic fixed income versus 40% for the
benchmark.

it maintained an overweight in financial stocks,
such as MCB Group Limited and SBM Hoidings
Lid, during the year based on relative
undervaluation from forward estimates. The
broad sirategy was io conirol exposure to the
tourism sector, directly via hotel stocks, and
indirectly via conglomerates. The previous
siralegy of overweighting defensive siocks such
2s Phoenix Beverages Lid and Innodis Lid, and
construction-retated stocks like Gamma Civic Ltd
and United Basalt Products Lid, was mazintained,

During the first half of the financial year, the
international equities portiolic was overweight
seciors such as technology, software and
medical devices. Those izctical aliceations
benefited from the pandemic but in the second
hiali, markets rotated into value stocks following
the vaccination progress, higher inflation
expeciaiions and rebound in global economic
activity. With 10Y vyields moving above pre-
pandemic levels and expectations of more
aggressive opening of markets, positions in
sofiware were trimmed in favour of small- and
mid-caps as well as value stocks, mainly through
financials.

The top 5 holdings reflect the Invesimeni
Manager's process in terms of the core-satellite
approach as well as the house view on particuler
stocks and ETFs,

GEQGRAPHICAL ALLOCATION (% net assets)

Fund Index
Mauritius. ., e are s 88 ¢ 70.0
Norih Amarxca TR 8.5 21.2
Europe,..‘.‘......‘.. 6.6 3.5
Asia Pacific.......... ... ... .. 3.6 32
Central ASIZ...... .o s 2.5 0.0
Cthers.. .. ., 0.7 0.0
Latin America.............oocoeee Q.1 0.1
Alrica Middis East oo, o] 0.1
SECTOR ALLOCATION (% net zssats)
Domestic Fund Index
Banking & Insuranes... ... 17.1 12.2
Commeres. ... 4 55
Industry .. 4.4 2.7
lnv%imem e 3 7.2
Leisure & Tounsrr ............. 2.8 1.8
PIOREY.. e e, 0.1 [t
Sugar... e 0 ¢.2
Transport.. ..o, ¢ 1
International
Financial, . .. 4.8 4
Consumer Non- Cycln,al 7.5 58
Consumer Cychca! 2.5 4.4
Industrial.., 3.1 32
eechnoloay 78 8.6
Co*’:mumcauons ..................... 4.2 27
Energy... 0.6 1
Basic Mater:ais 1.2 1.3
Utilities. . 0.5 0.8
Others 0.8 0.1
TOP 5 HOLDINGS (% nat assets)

30/06/2020  30/05/2021

MCB Group Lid... 8.3 11.3
iShares MSCI Warfd E T F 8.9 8.5
SIT Bond 25/04/2024... ... . 5.6 5.1
Vanguard S&P 500 ETF......... 51 49
CIM Financial Sarvices Lid 39
3072025, . ... - '
TOTAL 28.9 33.7
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- Economic Review

Economy

The global economy contracted in calendar year 2020 with the growth rate estimated at -3.3%, after 2 series
of restrictions aimed at curbing the spread of the Covid-19 adversely impacted economic activity, Real GDP
growth among developed nations is estimated at -4.6% with the US, Germany, Frznce, ltaly and Spain
registering respeciive rates of -3.5%, -4.8%, -8.0%, -8.9% and -10.8%. Emerging and developing nations
posted -2.1%. dragged by China {2.3%), India (-7.3%), Brazil (-4.1%) and Russiz {-3.0%). Supply-chain
disruptions significantly increesed inflationary pressures in 2020 with global inflation estimaied =t 3.2%.
Domestically, aconomic activity was impacted by the national lockdown in March and stringent iravel
restrictions; zccording to Statistics Mauritius, real GDP declined by 74.9% in 2020, The contraction was
more severe in the tourism sector which adversely impacted foreign exchange flows, and the current
account deficit. The MUR weakened over the year, by 6.2% agzinst the USD. standing at 40.15USD in
June 2020 compared {o 42.65/USD in June 2021

REAL GDP GROWTH (MF estimates. % oY)

Group/  Advanced Euro EM & Emerging Sub- United China India WMauritius

Country Area Developing Asia Saharan States

Africa
2020 -4.8 -8.5 -2.1 -0.8 -1.8 -3.5 2.3 7.3 -156.8
2021(F) 5.5 45 8.3 7.5 3.4 7.0 8.1 8.5 6.6
2022(F) 4.4 43 5.2 6.4 41 4.9 5.7 8.5 5.2

In 2021, economic conditions significantly improved with the continued support of policymakers, the on-
going vaccination progress and easing of restrictions in several sconemias. The International Moneiary
Fund (IMF) revised upwards its 2021 real GDP growth prajection for the US to 7.0%, 0.8 percentage point
higher than its projections in April 2021, reflecting the relatively advanced pace of vaccines rollout and
additional fiscal stimulus. The Biden administration has proposed two multi-yzer spending packages
equivalent to 18% of 2021 GDP: the American Families Plan (USD 2T) end the American Jobs Plan (UsSD

2.3T) aimad at supporting vilnerable households, strengihening the recovery and improving lzbour
productivity.

Growth projections for 2021 in the Eurozone have been reviewed to 4.6% by the IMF, 0.3 perceniage point
higher than is April 2021 World Economic Outlogk {(WEQ) projection. As confinement measures are
gradually lifted, economic growth is projected te rebound strongly in the second half of 2021 boosted by
private consumption, substantial fiscel support and sirong external demand. Germany, France, ltaly and
Spain, are projected io grow by 3.6%, 5.8%, 4.8% znd 8.2%, respectively,
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Economic Review (Cont’d)
Economy {Cont'd)

Real GDP growth in developing and emerging economies is projectad te outpace advanced economies
with & forecast of 8.3% in 2021, agairst 8.7% in IMF's April 2021 ferecast. The relatively higher projections
among emerging nations are likely to be led by the strong rebounds in Indiz and Ching, which are projacted
to grow by 9.5% and 8.1%, respectively. However, lack of access to vaccines and challenges in controlling
renewed waves of the pandemic are iikely fo dictate the growth path among those nations.

On the deomestic economy, the IMF projects real GDP to grow by 5.6% in 2021 and 5.2% in 2022, The
recovery is expected o be driven by the construction and manufacturing sectors aiongside accommodation
and food service activities. Monetary policymakers are likely to mainizin the accommodative mongiary
policy stance in the short term to support economic activity and cushion against the likely disruptive &ifects
of the second wave of Covid-18.

According o the July 2021 WEQ, inflation rates in developed economies and emerging market and
developing sconomias are estimated to be at 2.4% and 5.4% raspectively. Higher inflation is expected in
some emerging markats and developing economies on account of elevated food prices. inflation Is
expecied to return fo its pre-pandemic levels in most nations in 2022, in the US, the PCE inflation rate is
expected {o hover above 2% in the near term driven primarily by transitiona! factors, pent-up demand and
on-going supply-chain disruptions. Statements from central banks regarding outlook for monetary poiicy
remain key in shaping inflation expectations
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Financial markets review
Eguity markets

After hitting a 4-year low in March 2020 following the declaration of Covid-19 as a pandemic and
implementation of lockdown measurss in several countries, marksis recovered most of the Josses by
August 2020, supported by unprecedenied monetary and fiscal stimuli by policymakers, globaily. Near-zero
Federal Funds rate, triflions of dollar of fiscal support and positive vaccing news pushed US equities in
record territories during the first half of the financizl year. Growih stocks outperformed the broader indices,
aided by technology and software stocks. During the second half of the year, rising inflation concerns raised
10Y US yields which dented the performance of growth stocks and the Nasdaq witnessed 2 correction in
February 2021. Invesiors rotated inio value and smaller caps, which outperformed the broader merket up
o May. As an indication, the S&P 500 index registered +14.4% over ihe period Jan-Jun 21 compared {o
the S&P 500 Value index and Russsll 2000 index which posied +17.0%. Falling yields towards the end of
the financial year and higher eamings expectations pushed key equity markets to record highs; overall, the
MSCt World index recorded +37.0% Yo,

In Mauritius, the SEMDEX did not track the recovery of giobal indices mainly on account of exacerbating
sgonomic conditions, the uncerizinty surrounding the full opening of borders and potential spillovers from
ths tourisim sector to other sectors. Following the budgetary measures in June and the announcement of
the reopening of borders, the SEMDEX posted relatively strong growth aidad by tourism-refated siocks. A
strong growth of +8.8% was registered during the month of June 2021 only, driving 2 YoY rise of 12.2% in
the index

EQUITY INDEX PERFORNMANCE (% local currancy}

Index (3 3M 8M YTD 1Y 3Y 5Y

S&P 500 +2.2 +8.2 +14.4 +14.4 +38.6 +58.1 +104.8
MSCI Werld......oo.... . L. +1.4 +7.3 +12.2 +12.2 +37.0 +44 4 +82.5
MSCi World Smail Cap.... +0.1 +4.6 +14.1 +14.1 +51.0 +35.0 +81.9
MSC! Europe......ooeee..... +1.6 +54 +13.86 +73.6 +25.1 +17.2 +34.4
MSCIEM...oooovve 0.1 +4 4 +B.5 +8.5 +38.1 +28.5 +84.8
MSCIAC Asia. ..o 0.5 +2.2 +4 0 +4.0 +31.7 +25.3 +81.3
SEMDEX. ..o +8.8 +16.6 +13.% +13.1 +12.2 -16.9 5.4

DEMEX. ..ol +7.7 +23.4 +33.0 +33.0 +37.5 +18.6 +d46.7

TOP INDEX LEADERS (% ioeal currancy)

Clobal equities 1Y Domestic equities 1Y
Applelne.....co 512 MCB Group 5.7
) Limited... ...
icrosoft +34. . +

co sa4 Alteo Limited............ ... 6.7
Teslalnc......ov . 42147 Clel Limited ...................... +48.6
Amazon.com Inc............... +24.7 SBM Holdings Lid ................. +15.0
Alohabet Inc - Class C +77.3 +39.7

Gamma Civic Lid
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Financial markets review (Cont’d)

Bond markets

The Barclays Global Aggregate Bond index registered USD returns of +2,6% during the financial year 2021.
During the secornd and third quarters of FY21, the global bond market sold off following the global rollout of
vaceings, passage of the USD 1.9 trillion fiscal sfimulus package in the US and higher inflationary
pressures. In the last quarter of FY21, however, global bonds raliied as markets shrugged off infiation
concerns and the rapid spread of the more contagious Delta variant threastened the globzl economic
recovery. Emerging market debt performed paificuiarly well during the fourth quarter while inflation-
protecied Treasury securities posted sirong returns amid higher infiation readings.

During the financial year, the Fed mainteined its monthly asset purchase of USD 80Bn of Treasury
securities and USD 40Bn of morigage-backed securities whils keeping the Fed Funds rate in the range of
0.0%-0.25%. It shitad to a more hawkish outlook in June 2021 with the Federal Open Market Committee
(FOMC) anticipating two interest-rate hikes by the snd of 2023, Faster than expected vaccine roliout
combined with the large fiscal stimulus crove 10-vear US Treasury yield higher by 108 bps from 0.66% in
June 202010 1.74% in March 2021. However, US Trezasuries rallied over O4:FY21 primarily due to concerns
over ihe spread of the Delta variant; with 10-year US Treasury yield tumbling to 1.47% in June 2021.

The European Central Bank (ECB) ket the interest rate unchanged on the main refinancing operations,
the marginal lending facility and the deposit facility at 0.00%, 0.25% and -0.50%, respectively. The
Governing Council conducted net purchases under the pandernic emergancy purchase programme (B EFPP)
at a signfficantly higher pace during the last quarter of FY21. Bond yields were generally on the uptrend
mainly onh account of Europe’s vaccine caich-up and raiification of the EU Covid Recovery Fund -
NextGenerationEU. The corrasponding yields on 10-year German and Spanish bonds surged by 24 bps
and 39 bps to -0.21% and 0.41%. Conversely, yields on 10-year ltalian bond ticked jowsr in FY 2021 from
1.26% t0 0.82%. amid optimism that the newly appointed Prime Minister of ltaly, Mario Draghi, will push for
key structural reforms.

Yields on the domestic bond market trended upward during the FY21 amid the shift in sentiment from the
pandemic-related shock, decrsase in MUR excess liquidity and sovareign rating downgrade. On the
secondary market, yields on the 91D Treasury Bills increased by 27 bps to 1.01% over the year. Yields on
182D Trezsury Bills and 364D Treasury Bills increased by 36 2nd 42 bps to reach 1.22% and 1.48%,
respectively. 3Y GOM Notes yisld increased from 1.56% to 2.54% while 5Y GOM Bonds traded at 3.12%
against 1.88% in June 2020, Long-term yields rose more aggressively with 10Y GOM Bond trading at 4.34%
as at June 2021, equivaient to 2n increase of 188 bps. The yield on 15Y GOM bonds was also on the
Upward trend standing at 4.76% against a preceding reading of 2.81%. The 20Y GOM Bond vields
increased from 3.05% to 5.14%.
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Financial markets review (Cont’d)
Bond markets {(Cont'd)
BOND INDEX PERFORMANCE (% local currency)
Index 1M 3M 6N YTD 1Y 3Y 5Y
Barclays Globzal Aggregate 0.9 13 32 a2 26 +132 =123
Bond........ ’ ' ‘ ‘
Barclays US Aggregate Bond 407 13 6 15 03 <169 <161
Barcleys US Govi Inflation-Linked Al )
Maturities Indax +0.7 =3.5 +1.8 +1.6 +8.5 +21.5 +23.4
Barclays High Yield bond #02  +34 #2421 +146 210 <369
JF Morgan EMU IG 8ond 404 07 31 31 01 404 475
JP Mergan EM Bond +08  +45 1.0 A0 +7.5 42285 4264
FTSE Asian Broad $0.6 414 02 -02  +41 4218  +247
Bond.................
MARKET YIELDS 1%
Tenor United States Germany Indiz China Mauritius
Jun- Jun- Jun- Jun- Jun- Jun- Jun- Jdun- Jun- Jun-
21 20 21 20 21 20 al 20 21 20
81D 0.05 0.13  -057 083 3.8 3.74 - - 1.01 0.74
182D 0.04 018  .065 -0.51 3.89 375 2.08 - 1.22 0.86
364D 0.08 013  -066 -0B3 418 3.8 231 2.09 1.48 1.08
3y 0.45 017 067 072 518 488 275 233 2.54 1.56
5Y 0.88 030 059 D7 5.87 535 292 255 3.12 1.89
10y 1.47 082 -0.26 -049 687 8.24 3.08 2.85 4.34 2.48
15Y 165 08¢  -0.01  -0.31 6.85 5.52 - - 4.768 2.81
207 186 112 008 020 7.00 6.61 3.31 345 514 3.05

Commodity markets

The S&P GSCl index registered & USD performance of +57.4% over the financial year 2021, mainly led by
the rebound in ofl prices from about USD 40/8b! in the mid-2020 to above USD 70/Bbi as at June 2021.
Brent and WTI prices rallied by more than 80% during FY21 mainly supported by stronger demand
cenditions amid easing of lockdown restrictions and supply measures from OPEC. Natural gas gained
strongly as demand outpaced supply, Precious metals registered mixed performances wih Silver
advancing by +43.5% on the back of its dual precious metals and industrial uses while Goid posted -0.6%.
Gold initizlly edged higher as investors hedged against the rising inflation threat but the bull run came to an
end with the resurgence of the USD and strong economic data,
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Financial markets review (Cont’d)
Commodity markets {Cont'd)

CONMOBDITIES

Jun-21 Jun-20 FY21 (% YoY)
WTI p a 87 1
SIBB.....oee e 7347 38.27 8r.
Brent S/Bbl...... 76.13 41.15 +82.5
Natural gas UsSD 1085
SfmmBtu._. ... e 3.65 178 ’
Coppar B0z, ..o 429.85 271.35 +58.3
Sitver Spot S/0zZ oo 26,13 18.21 +43.5
Gold Spot S/OZ.. ..o 1.770.11 1.780.86 -0.6
rForex

The U.S. Dollar Index (DXY) traded sideways over FY21 with the USD initially strengthening on the back
of stimulus and higher long-term rates but eventually lost ground against other major currenciss 28 lenger
US yields sased, The weakening of the dollar was also atiributable to investors pricing in an early Fed
tightening while the inflation sutlook and higher oil prices presented headwinds,

The euro appreciated against the US dollar, buoyed by easing Covid-19 restrictions, rising consumer
confidence and the vaccination programme. The pound sterfing strengthened, backed by hopes thet the
UK would ease its lockdown reskrictions sconer than expected amid the fast vaceine rollout. The pound
wes aise stupported by a post-Brexit trades daal with the EU.

Among Asian markets, the Jepanese Yen deprecizied against the dollar, unwinding an advance spurred
by demand for safe-haven assels during the pandemic. The acceleration in the vaccine rollout across ihe
world drove investors into riskier zssets. The CNY strengthened in FY21 driven by a broadening US doflar
weakness amid China's strong economic rebound. Robust exporis growth resulted in a current account
surplus and supparted the yuan. The lndian rupes appreciated against the US dollar amid the improved
risk appetits in the region, The strengthening of the INR was aiso aftributable to foreign inflows through FDI
and FPL

In Meuritius, the MUR depreciated by 8.2% YoY agains: the USD: the central bank sold USD 25M at Rs
42.50/USD on 28 June 21 against a sale of USD 25M at Rs 40.70/USD on 10 June 2. The currency
continued fo be under pressure amid the widening current account deficit and travel restrictions.

FOREX
Jun-21 Jun-20 FY21 (% YoY)

Dolar index........ovs oo 92.44 97.38 -5.1
EUR-USD e, 1.19 1.12 +58
GBP-USD.......o 1.38 1.24 +11.5
USD-dPY e, 111,11 107.83 +2.9
USD-CNY e, 8.45 707 -8.6
UBD-INR L 74.33 75.51 -1.8

USD-MUR oL 42.65 40,15 +8.2
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Market Outiook

The market environment remains highly uncertain with the spread of the delta variant 2nd the rise in
infigtionary pressures. International equity markeis may be entering & phase of transition as earnings,
econemic growth and policy stimulus paak. Petential headwinds include persistently high infigtion, earlier
than expected Fed tightening and higher taxes. Internationally, equity aliocations are likely to be raised in
the "quality factor”, that is, investment sirategies with focus on companias that exhibit higher profitability,
low leverage and consistent earnings. From long-term and strategic perspectives, the foreign equity
investments are expected to maintain a sector overweaight in technology and a geocgraphic overweight in
India.

In terms of demestic squities. the trajectory of recovery in economic activity in 2021 is reliant on tourism
given its double digit direct and indiract contributions to sconomic cutput. So far, the policymakers have
supported the sector through the moratoriums on lozns, Governmen: Wage Assistance Scheme and
lending from the Mauritius Investment Corporation Ltd. In its last budget, it was announced that as from
Getober 1, there will not be any entry restriction on vaceinated travelers provided that their PCR tests are
negative within 72 hours before depariure. A prospective rebound in this sector's output during the
upcorning peak season is lkely to ease pressurs on the MUR and on the debt-to-GDP ratio. Unless there
is a drastic change in markat conditions, the domestic equity strategy is likely to remain constant, that is,
overweight select financial and construction-related stocks, control in/diract exposure to the hotel segment
and underweight the investment sector.

On the fixed income front. high inflationary pressures and an improving lzbour market may result in the Fed
tapering its monihly asset purchasas in 2021. The latest labour market data showed a2 drop in the
unemployment rate; 934,000 jobs were added during the month of July against consensus estimates of
£70,000. With 10Y yields increasingly likely to test the 1.60% - 1.70% range by the end of 2021, the Fund
is likely to maintain tts undeswsight in international fixed income, especially in a context of weak MUR.
Purchase of low-yielding assats denominated in foreign currencies may impact the medium- 1o long-term
performances due to interest rate and re-investment risks. The strategy will involve a relatively fow duration
while underwsighting the high-yisld and ernerging markets space amid poisntial tapering.

Domestically, Yields tumbled in July after geining significant grounds following the issuances of 20Y and
15Y GoM bonds in June. i is expectad that the Bank of Mauritius will mainiain its accommodative monetary
policy amid the uncerainty surrounding the pick-up in economic activity. The pursuit of this policy is likely
to be supported by the relatively low reading of 2.6% for headline inflaticn in July: according to BoM
projections, domestic inflation continuss to be subject to transitory supply-side pressures and is forecast to
stand at about 3.5% for 2021. It is expected that domestic fixed income zllocations will mainiain a barbel!
strategy in managing interest rate and re-invesiment risks. Subject to availability and credit spreads, the
exposure to “guality” corporate credit will be increased in the portiolios.
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The Trustze and Manager of SBM Universal Fund {"the Fund”} are pleased to submit thair Corporate
Governance Report for the vear ended 30 June 2021, inclusive of other staiutery disclosures.

INTRODUCTION

SBM Universal Fund was authorised by the Financial Services Commission under the Unit Act, 1689 as
amended, and established as a Unit Trust by 2 trust deed of the SBM Unit Trust dated 7 June 2002 between
SBM Mauritius Asset Managers Ltd {The manager) and Sun Insurance Co. Lid (The Trustes) and
subsequently governed by the Supplemantal Deed dated 30 November 2012, Suppiemental Deed Na. 1
dated 14 November 2013 and Supplemental Deed No. 2 dated 20" October 2017,

it is an open-ended Collective Invesiment Scheme sstablished undar Saction 3 of the Unit Trust Act. 1989
authorised and reguisted under the Trust Act, 2001, Securities Act, 2005 and the Securities (Collective
Investment Schemes and Closed-end Funds) Regulation, 2008 by the Financial Services Commission.

Fowever, following a restructuring exercise, the Fund has been resiructurad under the SBM Investmeant
Unit Trust, whilst keeping their invesiment objeciives and strategies by a Supplemental Desd of
Amendment of the Trust Deed of the SBM Investment Unit Trust dated 31 December 2019 between the
Manager and DTOS Trustees Ltd.

The Fund's objective is t¢ maximise returns on = fong-term basis and to provide regular income o its
unithciders whilst keeping a balanced-risk strategy.

The Fund is 2 public interest entity as defined under the Financial Reporting Act 2004,

INTRODUCTION

SBM Universal Fund's corporate governance framework includes its Trustze, Investment Commiitee,
Manager, the board of the Manager, Unithoiders, and other stekeholders.

The grganisation’s structure is 2s follows:

Unit Holders
. — ( Board of Directors of SBMMAM
DTOS Trustses - M. Pierre d'Unienville
Lid - Mr. Alain Eric Koo Khen Heong Venpin

T - Mr. Shailendrasingh Sreckeessoon
If - Mr. Roshan Ramoly

; - Mrs. Reedhee Shuitoo
i

; .\ - Mr. Johrt Wallzce Mcliraith
N
SBM Investment SBM Universal 5BM Mauritius Assei
Unit Trust -2 > Fund e o n Managers Lid
{"SBMMAM™

Investmeni Commitiee of SBMMAM
- Mz Alein Eric Koo Khen Heong Venpin
- Mr. Roshan Ramoly
- Mr. Richard Robinson
- Mr. Edward Vaughan Heberden
- Mr. Assad Abdullatiff
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INTRODUCTION (CONTINUED)

The Trustes, the Manzager and the board of the Managar are fully committed o achisving and sustaining
the highest standards of corporate governancs with the aim of maximising fong-term value craation for the
Unithelders of ihe Fund and all the stakeholders 2t large. Much emphasis is on the conduct of business
practices that display characteristics of good corporate governance namely discipline, transparency,
independencs, integrity, accountability, sociat responsibility, professionalism, and fairmess.

In addition, the Trustee, the Manager, and the board of the Manager of the Fund continuously review the
implications of corporate governance principles and practices in light of their experience, regulatory
requirements and investor expectations. They hareby confirm that the Fund, as set out in this report, has
strived to comply in all material aspects with the following legal and regulatory frameawark:

¢ Trust deed and subsequent Supplemental Deads;

¢ Terms of reference of ihe Trusies and sub-committas:

e The National Code of Corporate Governance for Mauritius 2018 (the “Code");

> The Trust Act, 2001;

s The Securities Act, 2005: and

= The Securitiss (Colisctive Invesiment Schemes and Closed-end Funds) Regulations, 2008,

The main roles as described under Principle 2, 3 and 4 of the Code of Corporate Governance are fulfifled
by the Board of the Manager.

The Board of the Manager has attemptad to create the right balance and composition o better mest the
objectives of the organisation. The Board is unitary and comprises of six Direciors, of which four are
Independent and two are Exacutive Dirsctors. The [ndependent Directors do nat have any relationship with
the majority Shareholders, therefore 2 sufficient number of diraciors do not have any relationship with the

organisation. The Board is led by Mr. Pierre Marrier d'Unienville, and all Board members currently reside
in Mauritius.

There exists a transparent procedurea in place regarding the appointment of prospective Directors which is
made in accordance with the skills, knowledge and expertise required on the Board. The re-slection of
Directors is made on an annual basis at the Annual Meeting of Shareholders. New Board members are

provided with an induction pack to provide them with sufficient knowledge and understanding of the Fund’s
business.

All Board members are fully apprised of their fiduciary duties as laid out in the Companies Act 2001,

TRUST DEED AND SUPPLEMENTAL DEEDS

The Trust Deed and subssquent Supplemental Deeds of the Fund comply with the provisions of the Trust
Act, 2001, The Securities Act. 2005 and The Securities (Collective Investment Schemes and Closed-end

Funds) Regulations, 2008. The Dead is available upon written reguest to the Manager =t the Registered
Office of the Fund.

Salient features of the documents are:
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TRUST DEED AND SUPPLEMENTAL DEEDS {CONTINUED)

No Unitholder shali be entitied to:

= require the transfer to him of any of the zssets comprisad in the Fund;

« interiere with or question the exarcise or non-exercise by the Trustes or the Manager of the rights and
powers of the Trusiee and the Manager in their dealings with the Fund or its assets or any part thereof;

= attend meetings whather as Unitholders or otherwise, or to vote or to take part in or consent to any
action concerning any property of any entity in which the Fund holds an interest.

A Unitholder is entitied o any distribution as approved and declared by she Manager as per provisions of
the Trust Dead.

THE TRUSTEE AND THE MANAGER
Corporate Profile of the Trusiee ~ DTOS Trustees Lid

DTOS Trustezes Lid is 2 private company incorporated in Mauritius on 23¢ May 2003, DTOS Trustees Lid
is & wholly owned subsidiary of DTOS Lid and is duly ficensed by the Financial Services Commission to act
as 2 qualified trustee. t offers @ complete and comprehensive range of trust services including trust
formation 7 migration, corporate trusteeship, advice on tax, reguiatory and statutory matters, sccounting,
administration, and tex filings, where required,

Role of the Trustee

The Trustes has been appoinied in order to ensure that the affairs of the Bund are being managad ang
administered for the benefit of the Unitholders znd to thair bast interests along the foliowing principles:

» International best standards and regulatory compliance
Overseeing the conduct of the Fund's business and monitoring whether the business is being properly

managed 2t all levels according to international best standards and in accordance to provisions of iis
regulaiory regime;

= Accounts and risk management

Reviewing and, where appropriate, approving risk policy, financial statements. annual budgets, business
plers and internal reporis.

¢ Supervision of fund intermediaries
Supervising the fund intermediaries in their delivery of services to the Fund and ensure that such delivery
is done diligently and creatas most value for the Unitholders of the Fund.

Corporate Profile of the Manager — SBM MAM

SBM Mauritius Asset Managers Ltd ("SBM MAM") is licensed and ragulated by the Financial Ssrvices
Commission of Mauritius and holds a CIS Manager license. It is 100% owned by SBM Cepital Markets Lid.
SBM MAM offers investment management services across a number of asset classes including equities,
fixed income, private and alternative investments.

Role of the Manager and its obligations

The Manager is appointed by the Trustes and under the supervision of the Trustes, manages and

administers the Fund for the bensfit of the Unitholders of the Fund in accordance with the Trust Deed and
Prospectus of the Fund,
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THE TRUSTEE AND THE MANAGER (CONTINUED)

Role of the Manager and its obligations (continued)

iis obligations cover but are not restricted to the following:

«  Conduct of Business A
it shall conduct its business in 2 proper and efficient manner to ensure that any undertaking in the affairs

of the Fund is carried out in a proper, ethical, and efficient manner.

= Supervision of assets . . )
The Manager shail menage and supervise all asseis of the Fund (o the hast interest of the Unitholders,

¢« Trade in units of the Fund
t shall sell and issue units of the Fund in accordance to the provisions of the Trust Deed and Prospecius
and in s0 doing shall ensure that the interests of unit-holders are protecied at all times.

THE INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

The Trust Deed provides for the esteblishment of an Investment Commiitee composed of at least 3 parsons
and rot more than 8 persons. The main purpose of the committee is o issue guidelines and advise the
Manager on invesiments.

Currently, the Commitiee is composed of 5 members and meels on 2 quarterly basis. it reviews the
periormance of the Fung, ensures that the invesiment strategy complies with the provisions of the Trust
Deed and Prospecius,

Managing Conflict of Interest and Related Party Transactions

The Fund adhares o the Group Conflict of Inisrest and Related Party Transactions policy to assist the
Board of the Trustee and Manager in identiiying and disclosing actual and potential conilicts and help
ensure the avoidance of confiicts of interest, where Necessary.

For the related party transaction, please refer to Note 20 1o the Financial Statements.

Information, information technology and information segurity policy

The Trustee and Manager confirm that information, information techneiegy and information security policy
exist within the Group.

RISK GOVERNANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL

RISK MANAGEWMENT

The Manager is responsible for the risk management practice and procedures in place within the operaling
structure of the Fund for risk management. The Manager also defines the overall strategy for risk tolerance
and is responsible for the design, implemantation and review of 2 risk management framework, processes
and day-to-day managament of risk as performed by the intermediaries and service providers of the Fund.

Part of the responsibility to monitor the framework and processes has been delegated to the investment
Committee which conducts reviews on 2 quarterly basis.
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RISK GOVERNANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL (CONTINUED)
RISK MANAGEMENT {CONTINUED}

The Fund’s policy on risk management encompasses ali business risks including operational, technology,
busiress continuity. firancial, compliance and reputationa! risks which could influence the achievement of
ihe Fund's objectives. In conitext, 2 due diligence exercise is underiaken in collabaration with nominated
intermediaries fo ensure that they have the capability to commit on the implemeniation of appropriaie
custormised procadures and conirols for the purpose of the Fund.

The risk management mechanisms in place include:

= A system for the ongoing identification and assessment of risk;

= Devslopment of strategies in respect of risk and definition of acceptable end non-zcceptable jevels of
risk;

= The communication of risk management policies across the multiple parties and functionaries involved
it the processes;

* The impiementation of & documented system of processes with appropriate contrels and approval
mechanism that closely align the control effort to the nature and importance of the rigk:

= Processes to reduce or mitigate identified risks and contain them within the levels of tolerance definad
and agreed by the Board of the Manager;

= Compliance reporis are prepared and presented 1o the board of the Manager on a quarterly basis; and

o [nternz! audii functions exist st the level of the Manager and Fund Administraior whereby the processes
periaining to the affeirs of the Fund zre scrutinisad and undergo audit reviews, Quarterly reports are
preparad and presented io the boards of the Manager and Fund Administrator.

Risk expasure of the Fund falls within the following areas or risk:

Operational risks

Operztionzl risk is defined as risk of direct or indirect loss resuliing from inadequate or failed internal
process, peopie, and systems or from exiernal events. Assets of ihe Fund are properly safeguarded. and
reperting infrastructures are adequate and effective for timely and accurste data collection,

Compliance risks

Compliance risk is defined as risk of Ioss from failure o comply with regulations geverning the conduct of

an organisation’s business. It is 3 composite risk made up of risk of legal or regulatory sanctions, financial
loss, or loss of reputation.

Technology risks
Technology risks inciude hardware and software failures, system deveiopment and infrasfructure issues.

To varying degrees, the Fund is reliant upon ceriain techriologies and systemns for the smooth and efficient
running of its operations. Disruption to these technolegies could adversaly affect is efficiency.

Business continuity risks
This relates to losses from failed fransaction procassing and process management.
Reputational risks

this relates o losses due o unintentional or negligent failure to meet 2 professional obligation to specific
clients or from the nature or design of & product.
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RISK GOVERNANCE AND INTERMAL CONTROL (CONTINUED)

RISK MANAGEMENT {CONTINUED)
Financial risks

The primary sourcas of financial risks faced by the Fund are risks inherent to its invesimant activities.
Investment values and returns are dependent on the performance of financial markets and may adversely
affect the Fund's finencial resulis. The financial risks faced by the Fund and management of these risks are
further discussed in the notes te the financial sisiements.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Manager and the board of the Manager acknowladge their responsibility for internal contral and work
cleszly together and with the Fund Administraior to put in place a system of internal controis which is
designed o provide ihe Trusize with reasonable assurance that the assets are safeguarded; that operations
are carried out effectively and efficiently. that the financial controls are reliable and in compliance with
applicable laws and regulations and that material frauds and other irregularities are sither prevented or
detected within a reasonable time.

The Manager and Fund Adminisirator prepare compliance and risk monitering reports that are submitted
to the Investment Commitiee and Board of the Manager on 2 quarterly basis for their review, following
which recommendations are made to the Manager on an on-going basis. Preventive and corrective actions

are then duly implemented to address intemal control deficiencies and opporiunitizs for improving the
systems.

WHISTLEELOWING POLICY

in order to enhance good govarnance and transparency, the Group has a Whistleblowing poiicy. The main
aims of the policy are 1o provide an avenue for raising concerns related to raud, corruption, and any other
misconduct. The policy addresses the following:

s Profecticn of and Remedies for Whistle blowers and Complainanis;
=+ Channels and Procedures:
o Hoiline, Email and PO Box facilities

REPORTING WITH INTEGRITY

The Manager is reguired 1o ensure that adequate accounting records are maintained so as to disclose at
any time, and with reasonable adequacy, the financial position of the Fund. The Manageris alsc responsible

for taking reasonable steps o safeguard the assets of the Fund o prevent and detect fraud angd other
irreguiarities.

The Manager must preseni financial statements for each financial year, which give a frue and fair viaw of
the affairs of the Fund, and the results for that period. In preparing such financizal statements, the Manager
is required to;

+  select suitable accounting policies nd apply them on a consistent basis using reasonable and prudent
judgment

« siate whether or not the Trust Act, 1988, the Trust Act, 2001 and Internations) Financial Repariing
Standards {IFR8) have been adhered to and explain material departures thereto

« use the going concemn basis unless it is inappropriate.
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REPORTING WITH INTEGRITY (CONTINUED)

The Manager acknowledges its responsibility for ensuring the preparation of the financial statemenis in
accordance with [FRS and the responsibility of exiernal audiiors to report on these financia! siatemenis.

The Manager is responsible for ensuring the maintenance of adequate accounting records and an efiective
system of internal conirols and risk management and the selection of approprizte accounting policies.

Nothing has come to the Manager's atiention, o indicate any material breakdown in the fupciioning of the
internal controls and systems during the period under review, which could have a material impact on the

business. The financial stataments are prepared from the accounting records on the basis of consistent
use of appropriate eccounting records supporied by reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates that
fzirly present the state of affairs of the Fund.

The financizl statements have been prepared on 2 going concern basis 2nd thers is no reasen fo balisve
that the Fund will not continue as a going concemn in the next financial year.

The Manager confirms that in preparing the financizi statermnants, it has:

= selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently
= made judgments and estimates that are reascnable and prudent

¢ followed the international Financial Reporting Standards

¢ prepared the financial statements on the going concern basis

@ adnered 1o the Code of Corporate Governance in 2l material aspects and reasons have been provided
ior non-compliance.

The Manager is responsible for keeping proper accounting records, which disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of the Fund and to enabie them to ensurs that the financiai
statemenis comply with the Trust Act 1588, the Trust Act 2001, the Securities Act 2005, the Securities
(Collective Investment Schemes and Closed-end Funds) Regulations 2008 and have been prepared in
accordance with the International Reporting Standards. The Managar is aiso responsible for safeguarding

the assets of the Fund and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and
other irreguiarities.

The Annual repori is published in full on the website of the Manager of the Fung.
AUDIT

internal Audit

The Non-Banking Financial cluster (NBFCY of the SBM Group has its own permanent Internal Audit
function reporting to the Risk Commities of SEM (NBFC) Holdings Ltd, the holding Company of NBFC. The
internal audit tearn comprises of three fully gualified accountants. The internal auditors provide assurance
about the effectiveness of the risk management and control processes in place and they maintain their
independence by reporting to the Risk Committes. The Head of Internzl Audit has regular access to the
Trustez and Manager and the chairperson of tha Risk Commitize, There were no restrictions on access by
the Internal auditors to records or members of the managament team.
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AUDIT (CONTINUED)
internal Audit {continued}

The Audit and Risk Commitiees of NBFC are chaired by a Chartered Accountent and the Commities
comprises of independent members with more than 30 years’ experience in the Financial Services industry.
The Risk Committess reviews and approves Internal Audivs plan and resources and evaluates the
effectiveness of the function. The Audit and Risk Comimittees ensure thal  consistent risk-based audit
methedology is applied. The audit reporis are thereafter tabied 2t the Committes z2nd the findings and
methodologies are reviewed and discussed by the Risk Commitiee.

As the third line of defense, the role of internal audit is o provide independent, objsctive assurance services
designed to add value and improve NBFC entities’ operations. Audits zre carried out 1o review the
adequacy and effectiveness of the group's system of internal controls, 2s per the Board approved risk-
based audit plan. In conducting reviews, the Internal Auditors are alert to indicators of fraud and
opportunities that couid allow fraud, such as control weaknesses. in doing so, the Internal Auditors obtain
reasonable assurance that business objectives for the process undsr review are being achieved and
meterial control deficiencies are detected. Upon completion of each review, a formal report detailing the
audit findings and the appropriate recommendations are issuad to the chairperson of Risk Commities and
the Chief Executive Officer. Any deviation in policies and non-performance of internal contrels are duly

reported and discussed at Risk Committes level. Corrective actions are promptly taken and regular follow
ups as well as reporting performad by Internal Audit until compiete resolution.

External Audit

Deloitte was appointed as statutory auditors of the Fund for the financial year ended 30 June 2021, The
Trustee and Manager assess and review on a regutar basis the independence of the external auditor.

The fees paid for audit services for the year ended 30 June 2021 were Rs. 119,375 {period 2020 Rs.
77,258). The exiernal auditors did not provide any non-audit services during the financial year.

RELATIONS WiTH SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER KEY STAKEHOLDERS
SHAREHOLDING

Holding Structure ~ 30 June 2021

As at 30 June 2021, the Fund had issued 12,6665,488.11 units for 2 1otal fund size of Rs. 383,017,445, The
NAV per unit of the Fund as at 30 Junzs 20271 was Rs. 31 0308,

The NAV per unif for the past five years are as follows:

S Yearo oo NAV peranit
June 2018 2463
June 2017 26.66
June 2018 27.56
June 2019 27.34
June 2020 26.41

Jung 2021 31.03
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RELATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER KEY STAKEHOLDERS (CONTINUED)

SHAREHOLDING (CONTINUED)

Unitholders’ Relations and Communication
Unitholders are strongly encouraged to visit the website of the Manager to remzin updatad on the Fund's
initiatives/projects, goals, and prices.

Analysis of ownership
The Fund hed 1,044 Unitholders as at 30 June 2021, A breakdown of the category of Unitholdars and the
unit ownership as at 30 June 20271 ara st out below:

0-59,9¢8 391 227,801.58 B80%
60,000 - 98,899 80 195,700.85 1.55%
100,000 - 124,99¢ 41 151,500.94 1.20%
125,000 - 199,099 91 486,377.73 3.68%
200,000 - 499,889 262 2,645,775.23 20.89%
500,000 - 899,998 115 2,584,780.97 20.48%
1M - 1,499,899 26 962 ,381.71 7.84%
1.5M - 1,898,899 8 441,777 18 348%
2M - 2,890,989 12 934,755.04 7.38%
3M - 5,898,888 8 1,067,169.88 8.43%
SM - 10M 7 1,688,768.40 13.33%
TOM-20 M 3 1,257,888.82 9.95%
Total 1,044 12,665,496.43 100.00%

Unitholders’ Agreement

To the best knowledge of the Manager and Trustee, there has been no such agreemeant with any of its
Unitholders for the year under review.

Unithoiders® Calendar
The Fund has planned the following forthcoming events.

Reporting date 30 June 2021
Publication of vear end resuits Within 80 days from end of 30 June 2021
Declaration of dividend Within 3 months from and of 30 June 2029

Bividend Policy

The objective of the fund is to pay all income available for distribution on a yeezrly basis. [n that respect.
income excludes capital gains both realised and unrealised. While fixing the dividend rate, the Trustes and

Manager aiso take into account other considerations that might affect the economis interests and proper
long-term runining of the Fund.

For financial year 30 June 2020, it was agreed {0 payout an amount of MUR (4,758,328,91) as dividend
which resulted in a dividend per unit of MUR 0.3522.
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OTHER STATUTORY DISCLOSURES

SIGNIFICANT CONTRACTS

The foliowing agresmenis havs been approved by the Trustee and Manager and are siill effective as at end
of the financial year 2020-2021:

e Custody Agresment with the 3BM Bank {Mauritius) Limited,
= Administration Agreement with SBM Fund Services Lid.
o Fund Mznagemant Agreement with 8BM Maurilius Assef Managers Lid.

Employee Share Option Scheme
The Fund has no share oplion pians.

Dirsctors end Officers Liability Insurance
The Fund has subscribed to 2 Dirsctors and Cfficers Liability Insurancs paligy in respect of legal actions or

iishility which may arise against fis Trusiee, Manager, and officers. The cover does not orovide insurancs
against fraudulent. malicious, or wikiul acts or omissions.

Ethics and Business Conduct

Under reguigtory supervision of the Financial Services Commission, all oficers and agents of the Fund are
expscied 1o meintzin a high level of ethics in their behaviour and business trensactions. The ransactions
of the Fund are carried oul as per its Manager's and Fund Administrator's Code of Business Conduct and
Ethics, zpplicable to &l direct and indirect employees who deal with the matters of the Fund. The Fund is
involved in the provision of services and its operations do not materially impact on ‘xhe environment.
lnvesting s W glude investment in scund, ethical and environmental friendly entitie

ol ol 3

f{‘%gnd Manager ) : \J\
)

4 é’ On behalf of the Manager
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E Trustee’s and Manager's Responsibilities in respect of the Financial Statements

The Manager is required o ensure that adequate accounting records are maintained so as fo disclose at
zny fime, and with reasoneble adequacy, the financial position of the Fund. The Manager is alsc responsibie
for taking reascnable steps ic safeguard the asseis of the Fund to prevent and detect fraued and other
irregularifies,

The Manager must present financial statemenis for each financial year, which give & true and fair view of

ihe aileirs of the Fund, and the rasuits for that period. In preparing such financial statemants, the Manager
is required ic:

= selectsultable accounting policies and apply them on 2 consistent basis using reasonabls and prudent
judgment

+ state whether or nof the Trust Act, 1989, the Trust Act, 2001 and International Financizl Reporting
Standards (IFRS) have been adhered io 2nd expiain material departures thereto

« Uuse ine going concern basis unless ii is inappropriste.

The Maneger acknowiedges its responsibility for ensuring the preperation of the financizl stetiements in

accordance with IFRS and the responsibiiity of extemal auditors to report on these financial statements.

The Menager is responsible for ensuring the maintenance of adequate accounting records and an efective
system of internal controls risk management and the sslection of appropriate accounting policies.

Noinhing has come to the Manager's altention, to indicate 2ny material breakdown in the functicning of the
internal controls and systems during the perfod under review, which could hava & matarial impact on the
business. The financial statements are prepared from the accounting records on the basis of consistent
use of approprizte sccounting records supported by reasonzble and prudent judgments and estimaies that
fakly present the statz of affairs of the Fund.

The financial statemants have been prepared on a geing concern basis and there is no rezson io heliave
that the Fund will not continue 25 2 going concern in the next finansial yaar.

The Manager confirms ihat in preparing the financiel statements, they have:
= selected sultable sccounting policies and 2pplied them consistently

« made judgmenis and estimates thai zre reasonable and pruden;

» fallowed the International Financial Reporting Stendards

= prepared the financial statemsnts on the going concern basis

= adhered to the Code of Corporate Governance in a4 material aspecis 2nd reasons have been provided
fer non-compliance.

The Trusies and Manager are responsidle for keeping proper accouniing records, which disclose with
rsasonzble accuracy at any time the financial position of the Fund and to snable them o aznsure that the
financial statements comply with the Trust Act, 198, the Trust Act, 2001, the Securitizs Act, 2008, the
Securities (Colleciive Investment Schemes znd Closed-end Funds) Regulations, 2008 and have been
prepared in accordznce with Intemational Financial Reparting Standards, They are also respansible for

szfeguarding the assets of the Fund and hence for izking reasonable steps for the preventiomand detectio
of fraud and other imegularities.

Or behalf of the Manager <
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

{Section 75 (3) of the Financial Reporting Act)

Name of PIE: The SBM Universal Fund
Reporting Period: Year ended 30 June 2021

We, the Trustee and Manager of the SBM Universal Fund {the ‘Fund”) confirm that W the best of our
knowlsdge. the Fund has complied with most of its obligation and reguiremenis undsr the Code of
Corporaie Governance except for Principle 2, 3 and 4 of the Code of Corporate Governance.

The reason for non-compliance is that the Fund is sei-up as a Trust and At a company. In this context, i
has no board of directors, nc board commitiees, 2nd no campzny secretary,

Howeaver, the main roles as describad under Principle 2, 3 and 4 of the Code of Corporate Govarnance are
iulfilied by the Board of the Manager, SBM Mauritius Assat Managers Lid, as described above,

On behali of the Trusies and Manager

On behaif of the Managsr
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Mauritius
independent auditor’'s report to the Members of
SBM Universal Fund 4

Report an the audit of the financial statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of SBM Universat Fund (the “Fund”} set out on pages 6 to 38, which
comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2021, and the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, statement of changes in net assets and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Fund
as at 30 June 2021, and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRSs) and comply with the reqguirements of the Mauritius Companies
Act 2001 and the Financial Reporting Act 2004.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (1SAs). Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Fund in accordance with the International Ethics Standard Beard for Accountants’
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) (the “IESBA Code”), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinicn.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Corporate information,
the Manager’s Report, and the corporate governance report, but does not include the financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or cur knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Corporate Governance Report

Our responsibility under the Financial Reporting Act 2004 is to report on the compliance with the Code of Corporate
Governance disclosed in the annual report and assess the explanations given for non-compliance with any requirement
of the Code. From our assessment of the disclosures made on corporate governance in the annual report, the Public
Interest Entity has, pursuant to section 75 of the Financial Reporting Act 2004, complied with the reguirements of the
Code.

Responsibilities of trustee and manager for the Financial Statements

The trustee and the manager are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and in compliance with the requirements of the Mauritius
Companies Act 2001 and the Financial Reporting Act 2004 and they are also responsible for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the trustee and the manager are respansible for assessing the Fund’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
hasis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liguidate the Fund or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The trustee and the manager are responsible for overseeing the Fund’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Fund’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

e  Conclude on the appropriateness of the trustee and the manager’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Fund’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Fund to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Mauritius Companies Act 2001

In accordance with the requirements of the Mauritius Companies Act 2001, we report as follows:

e we have no relationship with, or interest in, the Fund other than in our capacity as auditor and tax advisor;

e we have obtained all information and explanations that we have required; and

. in our opinion, proper accounting records have been kept by the Fund as far as appears from our examination
of those records.

Use of this report

This report is made solely to the Fund’s members, as a body, in accordance with section 205 of the Mauritius

Companies Act 2001. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Fund’s members those matters

we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by

law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Fund and the Fund’s members as a body, for
our audit wark, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

/)6( cul~
Deloitte LL
Chartered Accountants Li

20 September 2021

Xh Hee, FCCA
nsed by FRC



SBM UNIVERSAL FUND
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 30 JUNE 2021

8.
2021 2020
Notes MUR MUR
ASSETS
Cash and cash eguivalents 48,576,538 27,329,483
Other recsivables g 1,380,181 356,013
Financia) assats at fair valus through other comprehensive
income 7 296,925,521 284,854,256
Financial ass2s held ot amoriised cost k) 77,351,732 65,243,964
394,233,952 357,783,707
LIABILITIES
Ofhar payzbles 4 1,140,356 1.058,112
income lax liablity 12(a} 76,150 (45¢,578)
1,218,508 589,434
NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTAELETO HOLDERS OF
REDEEMABLE UNITS
Redeemable unils 5{a) 138,274,240 161,890,343
Retained earmings 3,083,370 £,760,472
Fzir value reserve 250,245,853 182,228,727
Other reserve 1,433,883 1,203,825
g 383,017,446 357,184,267

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Approved by the Trustee and the Manaosr

L
LI | ;

¢ = ,_ F
Signeﬁ‘%l omgen‘al@?the}mstié:

b=

ng authorised for issue on ...

Sighed on behali of the Managar:

The notes on pages 10 to 38 form pant of these financial stzlements.

384,233,852 357,783,701




SBM UNIVERSAL FUND

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

INCOME

Dividend income

Interest income

Net foreign exchange gain
Otherincomns

FUND EXPENSES
Manager's fees
Administrator's fees
Registry fees

Trusiee's fees

Custodian fees

Auditor's fees

tegal & professionzl fees
Sundry expenszes
Expecied credit losses
Provision no longer required writien back

PROFIT BEFORE TAX
Income tax expense
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR/ PERIOD

OTHER COMPREMENSIVE INCOME

ltems that will not be reclassified subsequently to proiit or ioss
Net fair value gein/ loss) on finzncial assels at FYOCH

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO HOLDERS OF

REDEEMABLE UNITS

The nates on pages 10 to 38 form part of these financial staiements.

Period from 01

Yearended  Jzanuary 2020
30 June to 30 June
2021 2020
Notes MUR MUR

7{g) 3,522,139 1,011,423
13 4,890,823 2,129,828
230,258 1,203,625

- 44,138

8,743,220 4.339,113

14 3,613,963 1,802,435
18 451,745 225,304
19 451,745 225,303
15 313,188 185,530
17 352,635 273487
119,375 77,259

81,462 86,263

34,938 6,986
] {251,454) (319.400)
- (21.437)

5,167,585 2,301,730

3,675,625 2,087,383
12 (b} {282,140) {114,259)
3,263,485 1.872,423

7 61,015,228 {20,157,756)
54,308,711 (18,185,332)




SBM UNIVERSAL FUND
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021 8.

Non-distributzble income

Redeemahble Reatained Fair value Qther
urnits eEmings reserve reserve Tota]
MUR MUR MUR MUR MUR
HNote
At D1 January 2020+ 8f from UF-
Unit trust 176,498,953 3,290,673 202,388,483 - 388,878,108
Issue of units £43.823 - - - 943,323
Recemption of uniis 15,453.333) - - - {15,453,333)
Change In nat gssets attribulable
te hotders of redeemablz units
for the period - 1,972,423 (20,157,756} . (18,185,332
Forsign exchange gain transfer - e
- (1,203,525) - 1,203,825 -
As 24 30 June 2020 161,880,443 4,758 472 188,230,727 1,203,825 357,184,268
At 01 July 2021 161,990,443 4,759,472 189,230,727 1,203,825 357,184,267
Iszue of units 3,490,582 - - - 3,450,582
Redemption of units {27,208,785) - - - {27,206,785)
Change in net assets atlributzbie
to holoers of redesmable units
for the vear - 3,293,485 81,015,226 - 54,308,711
Disiribution to unitholders 24 (4,758,329) (4,759.329)
Foraign exchange gain iransfer - - {230,258) - 230,258 -
As at 30 June 2021 138,274,240 3,063,370 250,245,953 1,433,883 383,017,445

* Mote:

As per the Fund's prospectus, capital gains arising frorm changes in the value of investmants, both realised and
unrezlised are credited fo the non-distribuiable reserves and shall not be available for distribution as dividends.
Caplial losses arlsing irom changes in the value of investment will be debited to fair vaiue reserve and shall not

be oifset against incoms received. All other undistributable income and expenses arg transferrad to other
reserve,

The notes on pages 10 fo 38 form part of these financial statements,



SBM UNIVERSAL FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FCR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

8.

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit hefors tax

Adjustments for

Dividend income

Interesi income

Expected cradit lossas

Net foreign exchange gain

Provisicn no longer reguired veritten back

Operating loss before working capital changes

Decrease in other receivables

Increase/ (decrease) in other payables

Purchase of financial assets held at FVQCH

Purchase of financial zssets held 2! Amortised cost
Disposal proceeds from financial assets at FVOC!
Maturity proceeds from financial assats at amortised cost
Interest receivad

Dividend receivad

Net cash generated from operations
Incoms tax paid

Income tax refund from MRA
Additional tax paid on MRA assessment

NET CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Issue of units

Redemption of units

Bividend distribution

NET CASH FLOW USED IN FINANGING ACTIVITIES

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH

Effect of foreign exchange gain on cash and cash squivalents

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT START OF YEAR! PERIOD

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR /PERIOD

The notes on pages 10 to 38 form pas of these financial statements.

Notes

|
—

-
Oy

vt

L {e]

o~ o ~)

12(2)
12(2;
12(b)

Period from 01

Year ended January 2020
30 June to 30 June
2021 2020
MUR MUR
3,575,625 2,087,383
{3,522,133) {1,011,423)
{4,990,823) (2,128,526}
{251,454) {315,400)
{230,25%) {1,203,325)
- (211,437
(5,418,049) {2,788,428)
165,804 26,687,942
81,244 {2,125,762)
(81,472,152} {53.528,330)
{36,844,140} (59.824.850)
110,481,793 36,284,074
20,600,000 86,588,775
8,712,970 1,044,830
2,628,182 522 435
19,238,662 32,950,887
(123,887) -
582,126 -
{184,570} -
18,482,350 32,860,887
3,490,582 043,823
(27,206,785) {15.453,333)
{4,758,329) -
(28,475,532} (14,509,510)
(8,983,182} 18.451,377
230,258 1,203,625
27,328,463 7.674,481
18,578,538 27,329,463




SBM UNIVERSAL FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021 10,

2.2

LEGAL FORM AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

SBM Universal Fund {"the Fund™) was authorised by the Financial Services Commission under the Unit
Trust Act 1889 {repealed and replaced by the Trust Act 2001) and established as a Unit Trust by & Trust
Deed dated 7 June 2002 beiween SBM Mauritius Asset Managers Lid ("The Manager”) and Sun
Insurance Co Ltd ("The Trusise™).

The Trust's application made further o the transitonal provisions set cut under Section 180 of the
Securities Act 2005, it has been authorised o operate as a Colleciive investment Schems under Section
g7 of the Securities Act 2005.

SBM Universal Fund operated as a domestic Fund uniil 31 December 2019. On 01 Jan 2020, a
restructuring exercise was performed wnereby 2l the assels and Habilities previously held under SBM
Universel Fund Lid were transferred to a Sub Fund of SBM Investment Unit Trust known zs “SBM
Universal Fund”, pursuant to a Supplement of the Trust being executed between the Trustee and the
Manager.

The Fund's objective i io provide regular income and maximise returns on e fong term basis for the
benefit of the unithoiders,

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
{IFRSs}

In the current vear, the Fund has applied alt the new and revised standard and interpretations issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board {IASB™ and the Internafional Financial Reporing
Interpreiations Committee (“IFRIC™) of the 1ASB that are relevant to s operations and sifective for
accounting periods beginning on 1 July 2020.

NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS IN ISSUE BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

Stendards and amendments to existing standards effective 1 July 2020

The following relevant revised standard has been appfied in these financial statements. Their
applications have not had any material impact on the amounis reported for current and prior years.,

145 1 Presentation of Financial Statements - Amendments regarding the definition of material

IAS B Accounting Policies, Changes in Accaunting Estimates and Errors - Amendments regarding
the definition of materiat

IAS 38 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measuremant - Amendments regarding pre-
replacement issues in the context of the IBOR reform

IFRS 7 Financial nstruments: Disclosures - Amendments regarding pre—eplacement issues in the
context of the 130R reform

IFRS g Financial instruments - Amendments regarding pre-repiacement issues in tha context of the
IBOR reform

Conceptugl  Amendments to IFRS 2, IFRS 3, IFRS 6, IFRS 14, IAS 1, 1AS 8, IAS 34, IAS 37, IAS 38,
Framework [FRIC 12, IFRIC 18, IFRIC 20, IFRIC 22, and SIC-32 to update thoss prencuncements with
regards to references to and quotes from the framework or to indicats where they referto a

different version of the Conceptual Framewark
NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

New standards, amendments and interpretations effective after 1 July 2020 and have not been
early adopted

At the date of authorisation of these financial stelements, the following refevant Standards were in issue
but effective on annual periods beginning on or efter the respactive datss as indicated:
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2 APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
{IFRSs) (CONTINUED)
22 NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
(CONTINUED)
New standards, amendments and interpretations effective after 1 July 2020 and have not been
ezrly adopted (Continued)
IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Sistements - Amendments regarding the classification of liabilities
(eifective 1 January 2023}
IAS i Presentafion of Financial Statements - Amendments regarding the disclosure of accounting
policies (effactive 1 January 2023)
lAS 8  Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Error - Amendmeants regarding the
definition of accounting estimates (effective 1 January 2023}
IAS 12  Incoms ifaxes - Amendmenis regarding deferred 1sx on leasss and decommissicning
obligaiions {effective 1 January 2023)
A5 3¢ Financial instruments: Recognition and Measurement - Amendments regarding replacement
issues in the context of the IBOR reform (effective 1 January 2621}
IFRS 7  Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Amendments regarding replacement issues in the context
of the IBOR reform (effective 1 January 2021)
IFRS9  Financial Instruments - Amendments resulting from replacement issues in the context of the
iBOR reform {gifective 1 January 2021}
IFRS 9  Financial Instrumenis - Amendments resulting from Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards
2018-2020 (fees in the "10 per cent’ test for derecognition of financial liabilities) {effective 1
January 2022)
The Fund anticipates that these amendments will be zpplied where applicadle in the financial statements
at the above effective dates in future periods. No potential impact is expected upon adoption of these
amendments.
3 ACCOUNTING POLICIES
3.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION
The finencial siatements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporiing
Standards ("IFRS") as issued by the International Accounting Siandards Board {"lASB".
The financial statements have been prepared on a hisierical cost basis. except for financial assets at fair
valug through other comprehensive income, which are measured at fair value,
3.2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

{a) Foreign currency translation

Tffe financial statements are presented in MUR {preseniation currency) which is also the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the Fund operates (functional currency). The Fund determines

its own functional currency and ftems included in the financial statements of the Fund are measured
using that functional currency,

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initiglly recorded by the Fupd at their respective functional
currency spot rates prevailing at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.
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3.2

ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
{a) Foreign currency translation {(Continued)

Transactions and balances (Continued)

Monetary assets and Rabilities denominated in foreign currencies are refransialed af the funciional
currency spot rate of exchange rufing al the reporting date. All differences zrising on setfiemant of
refranslation of monetary items are taken to profit or loss.

Non-menetary iterns that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are iranslated
using the exchange rates as st the dates of the initial transactions. Non-manetary items measured 2t fair
value in & foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at ihe dale when ihe fair value is
determined.

The gain or loss arising on retransiztion of non-monatary items is treated in line with recognition of gain or
foss on change in fair velug of the item (i.e., transiation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss
is recognisad in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or profit or loss, respectivaly).

{b}y Taxes
Current income tax

Current income tax assels and lizbilifies are measured at the amount expected {o be recovered from or
paid to the texation authorities. The {ax retes and {ax laws used %o compute the amount are those that ars
enacted or substantively enacted, by the reporting date.

Current income tax releting to tems recognised dirsctly in eguity is recognised in equity and not in profit or
loss. Mznagemant periodically evaluaies positions faken in the tax retums with respect io situations in

which =zpplicable tax regulations are subject o interpretetion 2nd establishes provisions where
appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using tha lizbility methed on temporary differences between the tax bases of
assets and #iabilities and thair carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferrad 1ax liabilities are recognisad for all taxable temporary differences, except:
. Where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or fiability
in & transection that is not 2 businass combination and, at the Sme of the iransaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with invesiments in subsidiaries, associates
and interests In joint ventures, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be

controlled &nd it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future,

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses, Deferrad tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable ihat
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporaty differences, and tha carry forwerd of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:
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3.2

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
{b} Taxes {Continued)

Deferred tax (Continued)

. Where the deferred tax asset relafing to the deductible temporary difference arises from the mitial
recognition of an asset or liabiiity in a {ransaction that is not 2 business combination and, 2t the lime
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

. in respect of dsductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only o the extent that
it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable arofit
wili be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised,

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced io the extent
that #t is no longer probabile that sufficient faxable profit will be avzileble {o zliow all or part of the deferrsd
tax asset io be utilised.

Unrecognised deferred tax assais are reassessed at sach reporing date and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profits wilt allow the deferred tax asset io be recoversd.

Deferred tax assets and lzbilities are measured ai the tax rates that ars expected to apply in the year
when the asset is realised or the Hability is seified, based on tax rates {and tex laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferrad tax relating to Hems recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss.
Deferrad tax items are recognised in comrelation to the underlying transaction either in other
comprehernsive income or directly in equity.

Dederred tax assets and deferred tax ¥abiiities are offset, if 2 legzlly enforceable right exists to set off

current fax assels against currant income fax liabiliies and tha deferred taxes relate to the same taxable
entily and the same taxation authority.

Tax benefits acquired as part of 2 business cormbination, but not salisfying the criteria for separate
recognition st that date, would be recognised subsequently if new information zbout facts and
circumstances changed, The adjustment would either be treated as a reduction fo goodwill (as fong as it
does not exceed goodwill) i it incurred during the measurement pericd or in profit or loss.

{c) Financial instruments

IFRS 9 sets out requirements for recognising and meesuring financial assets, financial liabilities and some

contracts to buy or sell non-financial fiems. This standard replaces 1AS 28 Financiat Instruments:
Reocegnition and Measurement.

As a resull of the adoption of IFRS 9, the Fund has adopted consequentizl emendments to IAS 1
Presentation of Financial Statements, which require:

-

Impairment of financial asseis fo be presented in a separate line item in the statement of
comprehensive income; and

Separate presentation in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income of inferest
revenue calculated using the effective interest method.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
{¢) Financial instruments {Continued)

Financial assets

Initial recognitior and measurement

Financial assels are classified. at initizl recegnition, as subseguently measurad at amortised cost, fair
value through other comprzhensive income (OCH}, =nd fair value through proftt or loss.

The clzssification of financia! assets at initial recognition depends on the financial assel’s contractusl cash
flow characteristics and the Fund's business model for managing them, The Fund hes applied the
practical expedient; the Fund inilially measures 2 financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of 2
financial assat not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs.

In erder for a financial asset to be classifizd and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI, it
needs o give rise to cash flows that are "solely paymenis of principal and interest (SPPIY on the orincipal
amount ouistanding. This assessment is referred 10 as the 8PP test and is performed at an Instrument
level,

The Fund's business model for maneging financizl assets rafers to how it manages iis financial zssets in
crder to generale cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contraciual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.

Management has made an assessment on tha basis of ths facts and circumstances that exisied 2t the
dale of initizl application to determine whethar to classiy the debt instrumanis held at amorisad cost or
financial assets ai fair value through QCIL The determination of the business model within which a
financizl asset is held at amortisad cost needs o maet the objective, which is to hold financial assets in
erder to collzct contractuai cash flows and its contractual terms give rise on specifizd dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Purchases or sales of finencial =ssets that require delivery of assets within & time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place {regular way trades) arz racognised on the trade date of

equity instruments and for debt instruments on settlement dale, i.e.. the daie that the Fund cemmits to
purchase or s2ll the asset,

Subseguent measurement

For purposes of subssquent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

. Financizl zssets at amortised cost {debt instruments)

> Financial asszis at fair value through OCI with recycling of cumulative gains and losses {debt
instruments}

. Financial assets designated at fair valus through OGH with no recycling of cumulative gains and

losses upon deracogniticn (equity instruments}

Financial assets at fair value through OC) with recycling of cumuiative gains and losses (debt
instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost

This category is the most relevant to the Fund, The Fund measures finzncial 2sseis at amortised cost if
both of the following conditions 2re mat:

The financial asset s held within 2 business modsl| with the cbjective to hold finzncial assats in
ordar to collect contraciual cash flows: znd
The contractuzl terms of the finencial asset give rise on specified detes to cash flows that are solely
paymenis of principal and inferest on the principal amount outstanding.
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3.2

ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

{c) Financial instruments {Continued)

Financial zssets (Continued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Einancial assets at amortised cost (Continued!

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest rate (EIR})
method and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are rzcognised in profit of loss when the asset is

derecognised, modified or impaired,

The Fund’s financial assets at amortised cost include cesh and cash equivalents and investments in fixed
deposiis.

Financizl assets designated at fair value throwah OC) {eguity instruments)

Upon inltiai recognition, the Fund can elect to classiy irrevocably its equity investments as equity
instrumants designated 2t fair value through OCI when they meet the definition of equily under [AS 32

Financial instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. The classification is determined on an
instrumeni-by instrumant basis,

Gains and losses on these financial asssts are never recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are recognised
as income in the stetament of profit or loss when the right of payment has been established. except when
the Fund benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which

case, such gains are recorded in OCL Equity instruments designated at fair value through OCH are not
subject to impairment assessment,

The Fund elected to classify irrevocably its quoted bonds and listed equity investments nd equity- related
investmenis under this category.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, 2 part of 2 financial asset or part of a Fund of similar financial
assetis) is primerily derecognised {i.e., remaved from the Fund’s statement of financial position} when:

The rights fo receive cash flows from the asset have axpired; or

The Fund has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third parly under 2 ‘pass-
through' arrangement; and either (a) the Fund bas transferred substantially aff the risks and
rewards of the asset, or {b) the Fund has neither transferred nor retsined substantielly all the risks
and rewards of the assel, but has transferred conirol of the assst.

When the Fund has transferred its rights to recaive cash flows from an asset or has entered inio a pass
through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks and rewards of
ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the

asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Fund continues 1o recognise the transferred asset fo the
extent of its continuing involvement.
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3.2

ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
{c} Financial instruments {Continued)

Financial assets {Continued)

Derecognition (Continued)

In that case, the Fund also recognises an associated liabilily. The transferred asset 2nd the associated
lizbility are measurad on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Fund has retzined.

Continuing involvement ihat takes the form of a guaraniee over the transierred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the assat and the maximum amount of consideration that the Fund
could be reguired to repay.

impairment of financial assets
The Fund recognises loss allowances for ECLs on financial assets measured 2t amortised cost.

The Fund measures foss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, except for the fellowing. which
are, measurad at 12-months ECLs:

. financial assets that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporiing date; and

. other financial essets for which credit risk (i.e the risk of default occurring over the expecied life of
the asset) has not increased significantly since initial recognition.

When determining whether the cradit risk of 2 financial zsset has incraased significantly since initial
recognition and when esfimating ECLs, the Fund considers reasonable and supportable information that
is refevant and aveilable without undue cost or efforl. This includes both gquaniitative and qualitative
information and analysis, based on the Fund's historical experience and informed credit assessment and
including forward-looking information.

The Fund assumes that the eredit risk on a financial assst has increased significantly if it is more than 30
days past due.

The Fund considers 2 financial asset to be in default when the finansial assets is more than 30 days past
due.

The Fund considers a financiel asset to have low credit risk when the credit rating of the counterparty is
equivalent io the globally understood definition of ‘invesiment grade'. The Fund considers this o be Raz3
for Moody's rating or 888~ as per Standard and Poor's reting.

Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from aft possible defauit events over the expected fife of & financial
instrument,

12-manth ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from the default svents that are possible within the 12

manths after the reporfing date (or shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12
months).

The meximum gericd considersd when estimating the ECLs is the maximum contractual period over
which the Fund is exposed to credit risk,
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3.2

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT AGCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

{¢}  Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets {Continued)

Impairment of financial asseis (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs

ECls arz a probability-weighted estimaie of credit losses. Credit losses are measurad as the present
value of all cash shortfalls (1.e the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in accordance with
the contraci and cash flows that the Fund expecis to receive).

Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporiing date, the Fund is required 10 assess whether finencial 2ssets carried st amorised cost
ars credit-impaired. A finencia! asset is 'credit-impaired” when one or more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimalad fulure cash flows of the financial assat have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the Tollowing cbservable data:

. Significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
d A breach of contract such as default or being more than 30 days past dus; or

. itis probabie that the borrower will enfer bankruptey or other financial reorganisation.
Presentation of allowancss for ECLs in the statement of financial position

Presentation of allowances for finencial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the aress
carrying amount of asseis.

Whrite-off palicy

A financial 2sset is writien off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the coniractuzal cash
flows. Financial assets written off may still be subject to enforcement activities under the Fund’s recovery
procedurss. Any recoveries made are recognisad in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial lizbilities comprise of other payables, which are measured at zmortised cost.
Subsequent measuremeant

The measurement of financial lizbilities depends on their classification, as describad below:

ther pavables

Accaunis payable are stated af thek amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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3.2

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
{c} Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liahilities (Continued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method s 2 method of celculzting the amortised cost of a financial liability and of
aliocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounis estimated future cash paymenis {including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of ihe interest rate, transaction costs and other premium or discounts) through the expected
iife of the financiat liability, or (where appropriate) 2 shorter period. to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Derecognition

A financial fizbifity is derecegnised when the obligation under the lizbility is discharged or cancellad or
expires. When an existing finencial liability is replaced by another from the sams lender on substantially
different ferms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of g new liabifity. The
difference in the respaciive carrying amounts is recognised in the stetement of profit or loss.

Oifsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and finzncial #abilitiss are offset and the net amount is reporied in the siatement of
financial position If fhere is 2 currently enforcezble legal right fo offsat the recognissd amounts and there
is an intention to seftle on a nei basis, {o realise the assets and setle the lizbilities simultaneously,

Determination of falr vaiue

The fair value for financial instruments traded in active markets at reporting date is based on their quoted
price or binding dealer price quotations.

For all other financial assats not traded in an active market, the fair value is determined by using
appropriaie valuation techriques. Valuation fechnigues include: using recent arm's length market
fransactions; reference to the current market value of another insirument thai is substantially the same;
discounted cash flow analysis making as much use of zvailable ang supporiable market data as possible.

An analysis of f2ir value instruments and further dstails as to how they are measured are provided in Note
8.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial staiements are

calegorised within the fair velue hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is

significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

. Level 1 fair value measurements are those derivad from guoled prices (unadjusted) in active

markets for identical assats or fiabilities:

- Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from Inputs other than guoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (Le. as prices) or indirectly

(t.e. derived from prices); and

Level 3 fair value measuremsants are those derived from valuation technigues that inciude inputs for

the asset or liability that ara not basad on observable market dats {uncbservabie inputs).
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3.2

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
{¢} Financial instruments (Continued)

Financigl liabliities (Continued)

Determination of fair value {Continued)

For asseis and liabilities that are recognised in ihe financial statements on 2 recurring basis, the Fund
determines whether fransfers have ocourred between lsvels in the hierarchy by re-assassing the
categorisation{based on the Jowest level input that is significant 1o the fair velue measurement as a
wholg) at the beginning of each reporting period,

{d} Revenue recognition under IFRS 9
{iy Intersstincome calculated using effeciive interest method

Interest revenug and expense are recognised in the siatement of other comprehensive income for ail
interest-bearing financial instruments using the effeciive interest method.

{iy Dividend Income
Dividend income is recognised when the Fund's right to receive the payment is established.

{2} Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash at bank.

(fy Redeemable units
Classification of redeemable units

Redeemable units ere clessified as equity instruments when:

The redeemable shares entille the holder 1o a pro rata share of the Fund's net assats in the event
of the Fund's liguidation.

The redeemable units sre in the class of instruments that is subordinate to all ofher classes of
instruments.

All redeemable shares in the class of instruments that is subordinzate o all other classas of
instruments have identical features.

The redeemable units do not include any contractual obligation to deliver cash or another financial
asset other than the holder's rights to a pro rata share of the Fund's net assets,

The total expected cash flows attributable to the redeemable units over the life of the instrument are
based substantizlly on the profit or loss, the change in the recognised net assets or the change in

ihe fair value of the recognised and unrecognised net assets of the Fund over the fife of the
insirument,

In addition to ihe redeemable units having all the above features, the Fund must have no other financia!
instrument or coniract that has:

Total cash flows based substantially on the profit or foss, the change in tha recognised net assets
or the change in the fair value of the racognised and unrecognised net assets of the Fund:

The effect of substantially restricting or fixing the residual return to the holdars of redeemable units.
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3 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)
(f) Redeemable units (Continued)
Ciessification of redesmable units (Continued)
The Fund clessified iis redeemable units as equily 2s it meets the above featurss and also the Fund
does not have any contractual obligation 1o repurchase or redeem for cash or other financial asset.
The Fund continuously assesses the classificalion of the redeemable units. If the redeemsble units
cease o have all the features or meet all the conditions set out fo be classified as equity, the Fund will
reclassify them es financial kzbiliies and measure them at fair vajue at the date of reclassification, with
any differences from the previous carrying amount recognised in equity. If the redeemable uniis
subseguently have all the features and meet the conditions to be classified 2s equity, the Fund will
reclassify them as equity instrumenis and measure them at the carrying amount of the lizbilities at the
daie of the reclassification.
The issuerce, acquision and cancellation of redeemsble sheres are accounted for as equity
transactions.
Lipen issuance of units, the consideration recelved is inciuded in equify.
Transaction cosls incurred by the Fund in Issuing or accuifing its own equity instruments are accouniad
for as a deduction from equity 1o the extent that they are incremental costs directly sitributable to the
equily transaction that otherwise would have been avoided.
{g) Related parties
Parties are considered to be related to the Fund if they have the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the
Fund ¢r exertise significant influence over the Fund. Related parties may be individuals or othzr entities.
4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES ANSD ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of ihe Fund’s financial statements requires managemant 1o make judgements, estimates
and sssumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, asseis znd liabilifies, and the
disclosure of contingent Habiliies. Unceriainties about these assumptions and estimates could result in

culcomes that reguire a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset ar lizbitity affectad in
future periods.

Judgements

in the process of applying the Fund's accounting policles, martagement has made the following
judgsment, which has the mast significant effect on the amounis recognisad in the financial statements:

{8) Deferminstion of funclional currency

The primary objeclive of the Fund is to generate returns in MUR, its capital-raising currency. The liquidity
of the Fund is meanaged on a day-ie-day basis in MUR. The Fund's performance is evatuated in MUR,
Therefore mznagement considers MUR as the currency that most faithfully represenis the economic
effect of the underlying transactions, events and conditions.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES ANSD ASSUMPTIONS (CONTINUED)
Judgements (Continued)
(b)Y Going concern

The Manager of the Fund has made an assessment of ifs ability to conlinue as & going concers and is
satisfied that the Fund has the resources to continue in business for the foreseesable future, Furthermore,
the Manager is not aware of any material uncertzinty that may cast significant doubt upen the Fund's
abifity fo continue as & going concern. Therefore, the financial siatements continue to be prepared on the
going concarn basis.

(¢} Business model assessment

Classification and measurement of financial assels degends on the resulis of the SPP and the business
model test (see financial assels seclions of note 3). The Fund determines the business model at a level
that reflects how groups of finenclal 2ssets are managed together to achieve a perticular business
obiective. This assessment includes judgement reflecting all relevant evidence inciuding how ths
performance of the assels is evajuated and thelr performance measured, the risks that affect the
periormance of the assels and how these are managed and how the managers of the assets are
compensated, The Fund monilors financial asseis measured at amortisad cost or fair value through cther
comprehensive income that are derecognised prior to their maturiy fo undersiand the reason for their
disposal and whether the reasons are consistent with the objective of the business for which the asset
was heid. Moenitoring is part of the Fund's continuous sssessment of whether the business modetl for
which the remaining financial assets are held continues to be appropriate and if it is not appropriate
whether there has been a change in business model and =0 2 prospective change to the classification of
those assels. No such changes were required during the year presenied,

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the fuiure and other key sources of estimation unceriainty at the
reporiing date, that have 2 significant risk of causing a material adjournment to the carrying amounts of
assets and lizbifities within the next financial year, are discussed below. The company based iis
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statemsnts wers preparad.
However, axisting circumstances and assumptions about future developments may change due to
miarket changes or circumsiances arising beyond the centref of the company. Such changes are affectad
in the assumptions when they ocour,

Expected credit losses (ECLs)

To caicuiate the ECL, the Fund has applied judgements that have a significent effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial siatements and include the classification of financial instruments into financial
assels measured at amortised cost category. Estimated ratings have been used for ihe calculation.(Nots
9)

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

As & resull of the ability (o issuz, repurchase and resell units, the capital of the Fund can vary depending
on the demand for redemption and subscriptions to the Fund. The Fund is not subject to externally
imposed capital requiremants and has no legal resirictions on the issve, repurchase or resale of
redeemable units beyond thoss included in the Fund's prospecius.

The investment objective of the Fund is to achieve atiractive risk-returns throtgh a combination of fong-
term capital appreciation 2nd current income by making portiolio investrnents,
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5. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT {CONTINUED}
The Fund's objectives for managing capital are:

- To invest the capitzl in investments, meeting the descriplion, risk, exposure and expected retum
indicated in its prospecius.

- To maintain suificient liquidity to meat the expenses of the Fund, and to meet redemption requests as
fhey arise.

- Tomaintain sufficient size to make the operation of the Fund cost efficient.

The capital of the Fund consists of units denominated in Mauritian Rupses and is redeemable at the option
of the unit holder based on nel asset velue. The redeemahble participating units have been classified as
aquity.

Unitholders have undivided rights in the Fund pro-rata to the number of Unils held by them.

Upen the Fund being terminated, the Fund shall selt all the Fund property vested in i in accordance with
the terms of the Trust Deed. It shall apply the proceeds of the sale to repay any liabllity by the Fund and
shall distribute all net cash proceeds to the Unitholders pro-raiz to their number of Units after deduction of
expenses ag provided forin the Trust Deed.

Unitholders shall be enfifled 1o vote at maetings of Unitholdars.

The foliowing mafters shall require @ meeting of Unitholders:

- termination of the Trust by Exiracrdinary Resolution,

- appoiniment of a new Manager or Trusiee in the case the Manager has retired and has not besn
replaced by the Trusiee or in case the Trusiee has refired and has not been replaced by the Manager.

{a) Movement in units during the year! period

2021 2020
No. of units MUR No. of units MUR
At stant of year/ period 13,520,458 161,990,443 14,058,474 176,498,953
Units created 130,928 3,480,582 35,893 943,823
Units Houidated {985,887} (27,206,785) (573,709) {15,453,333)
Al end of year/ period 12,685,497 138.274.240 13,520,458 161.890.443
{b) Netasset value / Unit
2024 2020
Net Assef Value 383.017.448 357,184,267
Units 12.885 487 13.520,458
Net Asset Value per unit 31.03 26.42
{c) Prices per unit
2021 2020
issue price (MUR} 31.34 26.68
Repayment price (MUR) 30.72 26.15
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6. OTHER RECEIVABLES
2024 2020
MUR MUR
Dividend receivabls 1,309,623 315,676
Disposal procesds receivable 48,157 212,280
Prepaymenis 24,381 28,062
1,380,161 556,018
The carrying vaiue of other recelvables epproximates its fair value and is receivable within 3 months.
7. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOWME
EQUITY AND EQUITY-
RELATED DEBT
Local Foreign Local TOTAL
Local and foreign investments MUR MUR MR MUR
Balance bff from S8M Unit Trust (01
January 2020) 185,391,846 58,688,288 12494724 267,574,858
Additions 8,854,653 31,068,338 12,505,338 53,528.330
Disposals {19,798 454} (16,485,820) - {38,284,074;
Interest accrued - - {6.088) (5,088)
Expected cradit losses (Note 3) - - {1,012} (1.512)
Net fair value ioss (32,463,771) 12,408,883 {102.847) (20,157,755)
AL 30 June, 2020 123,084,274 116,679,867 24,890,115 264,654.255
At 01 July, 2020 123,084,274 116,678,867 24,830,115 284,854.255
Reclassification (16,508,389} 16,508,389 - -
Additions 21,238,770 31,581,032 28,652,350 51,472,152
Dispesals (15,870,027)  (84,5611,766)  {10,000,000)  (110,481,793)
Interast accrued - B 270,835 270,835
Expected cradit losses (Note 9) - - {5,255} {5,255)
Net fair value gain 18,208,216 41,421,691 (314,601} 81,015,228
At 30 June, 2021 131,852,844 121,579,133 43,493,544 298,925,521
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7. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (CONTINUED)

{e} Equily and equity-related financial asseis measured at FVQC!

Lavastone

ABC Banking Corporation Limited

Adr Meuntus Lid

Ascentia Lid

CIEL Limited

CiM Financial Servicas Ltd
Gamma Clvic Lid

I1BL Li¢

lnnodis Lid

Lux islanc Resorts Ltd
MCz Lid

Mauritiue Oil Refineries Lid
MUA Ltc

New Mauritius Hotels Ltd

NMH Preference shares equity

Omnicane Lid

Phoanix Beverages Lid
Rogers And Co Ld
SBM Holdings Lid
Semaris Lid

Sun Resoris Lid

United Basal Products
The Lux Collective Lid
ALTEQ LIMITED

ENL Limited

SBM Indiza Fund Class A
SBM Capiial Protected Note

SBM Africa Valuz Fund Class A

Afreximbank_AEIR MP Equity
Financial Selec; Sector SPDR

Technology Select Sector SPDR EUR
Invesco Dynamic Software ETF
Invesco S&P 500 Low Volatiity ETF

iShares MSC) World ETF
iShares U,8. Madical Davices

PIMCC GIS-INCOME FUND-EEHA

Fasi Europe “A” Acc
Vanguard S&P 500 =TF
Vanguard Utillies ETF (US)

ridelity Fiunds - Suropean Dynamic

Fidelty Funds - Asiz Pacific

Jupiter Europezan Growth "A” LSD
T Rowe Price Global Fesused Growth
T Rowe Price US Smaller Companies

MSS US Advaniags "A"

MS$8 Globa! Advaniage "A" Acc

2021 2020
Divideng Dividend
Fair value Income Fair value income
MUR MUR MUR MUR

- 8.288 588 445 8,289

776,480 - 816,600 -

22,040 - 22,040 “

8,808,800 $6.036 £.921,280 -
543,691 - 908,937 20,848

3,156,430 - 1,807 484 -
6,342,300 205,148 2,546,200 131.700
10,158,018 23,524 12,138,897 895,624
5,538,680 36,831 35,283,472 104,838

3,517.800 - 2,984 800 -

44,220 549 1,174,58¢ 33,255,468 -

1,244,350 - 1,520,050 -
5,243,700 125,840 2,584,400 22,720

2,383,828 (62.835) 2,358,714 -
2,367,956 - 2,750,940 52,955

- - 386.082 -
8,090,000 129,920 2,271,800 28,800
2,407,700 - 2,353,068 -

13,764,428 9,427 823 -
484 785 - 507.870 -
2342158 - 2,317,724 -
3,510,477 72,758 3,116,382 46,079
246 426 - 245,428 -

- - - 45,532

- - - 37,980
8,573,081 - 4,910,768 -

. - 8,400,000 -

- - 52,231 -

- 1,145,835 16.508,389 -
2,213,708 5,868 - -
2,227.831 - 753,268 16,833
3,835,355 - 5,878,208 1,898

- - - 18,350

33,454,259 315,825 31,680,428 220,410
3.777,038 8,382 3,817,454 2,118
- - 10,035,528 -
5,233,247 13,877 - -
15,323,893 180,326 18,275,707 112,281
- 31,885 2,550,785 30,508
10,359,887 - 8,175,751 -
12,484,631 - 7,986,578 -
1,271,581 - - -
11,545,908 - - -
2.501.391 - - .
13,348,555 - 13,305,866 -
- - 14,419,185 -
253,431,977 3,522,139 232,764,141 1,011,423
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7. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (CONTINUED)

{b) Debt financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

Fair value Fair valus
2023 2020 Maturity dates
MUR MUR
SBM BOND 6.00 03/10/24 9,706,363 1.8257350 Mar-24
CiM Financial Services Lid_CFSL 4% 31/07/2028 15,249,538 - Juk25
FTPT 3.20% 27/04/28 3,017,048 - Apr26
SBI MUR Note 5.75% Class AZ Series Bond 12,501,627 12,495,939 Jun-28
FTPT 3.55% 27/04128 3,018,914 - Apr-28
OMNICANE BOND_5.8%_0806176 - 10,464 426 Jun-28
43,493,544 24,890,115
Total financial assets measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income 286,825,521 264,654,256
(c) Financis! zssats measursd at FVOC! can be further analysed as follows:
Local Equity Foreign Equity Local Dabt Total
At 30 June 2024 MUR MUR MUR MUR
Equily and Equity-related
Listed equity securitizs 126,695,549 121,579,133 - 248,274,782
Unlisted eguity securities 5,157,195 . " 5,157,195
Debdt
Listed bond securiies - - 43,493 544 43,493,544
131,852,844 121,579,133 43,453,544 296,825,521
At 30 June 2020
cquily and Equity-related
Listed equity securities 11,712,273 118,679,867 - 228,392,142
Unlisted equity securities 11,371,908 - - 11,371,898
Debit
Listed bend securities - - 24,890,115 24,890,115
123,084,274 116,679.887 24,820,115 264,654,236
{d) Financial assefs hefdal FVOG! can be analysed into: 2021 2020
MUR'000 MUR'G0O0
Non-current 256,225,521 264,654,256
Current - -
295,828,521 284,654 256

Upon inltial recognition, the Fund can slect o classify irrevocably its equity investmenis as equily
instruments designated at fair value through QCI when they mest the definition of squity under 1AS 32
Financial instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. The classification is determined on an

insirument-by-instrument basis.

Gzins and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss, Dividends ars
fecognised as income in the stetement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been
established, except when the Fund bensfits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the
financial asset, In which case, such gains are recorded in OCL. Equity instruments designated at fair

value through OC! are niot subject io impairment assessment,

The Fund slected to classify irevocably its [isted and non-listed equity investments under this

category.
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§.  FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD AT AMORTISED COST
2021 2020
MUR MUR
Balance bff from SBM Unit Trust - 90,862,897
ALO1 July 65,243,964 -
Additions 36,844,140 59,824,650
Maturity {20,000,000) (86,588,778)
Net interesi amortised (4,993,081} 853,857
Allowance for expected cradit loss (Note ) 258,708 320,412
Unrealised gain/{loss) - (128,178}
At 30 June 77,351,732 65,243,984
{(2) Financiel assefs af emortised cost cen be analysed as filows:
Term deposits with other financial insiitutions
Interest rate Maturity 2021 2020
MUR MUR
Le Prudance Leasing Co Lid 3.50% 3.50% 30-Apr2022 10,350,807 -
MAUTN 0.72% 12/08/2022 0.72% 12-Jun-2022 9,834,207 -
MAURCN 1.5% 05/07/2023 1.60% 06-Jul-2023 10,071,680 -
SIT_7 YR 6.50%_250424 5.50% 25-Apr-2024 20,107,270 20,071,814
Bank One Limited - 5% Notes 5.00% 22-Jun-2030 40,008,630 9,887,941
Ascencia Lid_4.15% 29122030_T2 4.15% 28-Dec-2030 4,987,768 -
Ascencia Lid_5.20% 29122030_T2 5.20% 28-Dec-2030 4,988,055 -
MAURGE 4.17% 05/28/41 & A7% 2B-Miay-2041 6,902,115 -
La Prudence Leasing Co Lid 3.50% 3.50% 30-Apr-2020 - 9,568,544
MHC ETD 6.75 % 1810115 3.95% 28-3ept-2020 - 25,200,465
77,351,732 85,243,864
{b) Financlal assels at emoriised cost are further analysad as follows.
2021 2020
MUR'0OD MUR'0C0
Non-current 87,066,528 30,068,854
Current 20,288,204 38,174,110
77,351,732 £5,243,954
9. ALLOWANCE FOR EXPECTED CREDIT LOSSES (ECLs)
ECL on
ECLon instruments at
instruments amoriised
at FVoCi cost TOTAL ECL
MUR MUR MUR
At 01 January 2020 113,525 794,827 ¢08,152
Movement during the period 1,012 (320,412) {319,400}
At 30 June 2020 114,537 474,215 588,752
At 01 July 2020 114,537 474,215 588,752
Movement during the year 5,255 (256,708) (251,454)
At 30 June 2021 118,792 217,508 337,258

All financial assels are classified under siage ? at reporting date (2020: Stage 1).
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1C.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT HIERARCHY

Fair value of the Fund's local and foreign investments that are measured at fair value on a recurring
basis

IFRS 13 requires disclosures relating to fair value measurement using 2 three level fair value hierarchy.
The level within which the fair value measurement is categorised in ifs entirely is determined on the basis
of the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Assessing the significance of a
particular input requires judgemant, considering factors specific 1o the asset or lizbifiy,

Levei 1 fair valuz measuremenis are those derived from quoted prices (unadjustad) in aciive markets for
ideniical assets or liabilities.

Levet 2 fair valug measurements are those darived from inputs other than guoted prices included within
Level 1 thet arz observable for the asset or liability, sither directly (i.2. as prices) or indirecily {i.e. derived
from prices).

Level 3 fair vaiue measurements are those derived from valuation {echnigues that include Inputs for the
asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

The following table provides an analysis of local and foreign investmanis groupad into level 1 2nd 2 basad
cn the degrae 10 which the fair value is observable,

Level 4 Level 2 Level 3 Total
MUR MUR MUR MUR

Financial assets st fair value through
ofher comprehensive income
Equily investmenis 126,695,648 128,488,902 246,426 253,431,877
Debt investmenis 22,207,592 21,285,552 - 43,483,544
At 36 June 2021 148,903,841 147,775,454 246,426 296,925,521
Equity invesimenis 111,712,275 127,805,440 246428 238,784,141
Debi invesimanis 14,425 683 10,464,425 - 24,890,115
At 30 June 2020 126,137,864 138,268,866 246,428 264,654,256

There has been no transiers between levels.
Concentration of equity price risk

The following fable analyses the Fund's concentration of eguity price in the Fund's equity portiolic by
industrial distribution:

2021 2020
MUR % MUR %

Local investments

Banks, insurance and other finance 67,170,588 50.94% 47,981,775 47 23%
Industrial sector 17,187,127 13.04% 9,454 432 9.31%
Commerce sector 18,697,698 11.91% 17,433,369 17.16%
Leisure and Hotels sector 10,858,244 8.24% 10,655,504 10.49%
Sugar sgctor - 0.00% 365,062 0.36%
Investment sector 11,216,590 8.51% 7.862,796 7.74%
Transport Sector 22,040 0.02% - 0.06%
Others 9,700,557 7.36% 7,857,000 7.71%

131,852,844 100.00% 101,604,038 100.00%
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10, FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT HIERARCHY {CONTINUED)
Cancentration of equity price risk (Continued)
2021 2020
MUR % MUR %
Foreign investments
Basic Materials 4,838,202 4% 3,773,430 2.73%
Communications 16,338,878 13% 15,366,444 11.12%
Consumer, Cyclical 9,901,448 8% 10,234,599 7.41%
Consumer, Nan-cyclical 28,380,837 24% 26,204,912 18.87%
Diversified 23,820 0% 26,116 0.02%
Energy 2,484,583 2% 4,038,762 2.82%
Financiai 18,450,059 18% 32,164,302 23.28%
Governmant 11,510 0% 373,698 0.27%
Industrial 12,124,506 10% 7.648,908 2.53%
Uiilities 2,111,618 2% 4,355,448 3.15%
(Others 25,603,873 21% 33.974,484 24.60%
124,578,133 100% 138,160,103 100.00%

The ioliowing table analyses the Fund's conceniration of equity price

geographicat distribution:

in the Fund's equity portialic by

2021 2020
MUR % MUR %
Local and foreign investments
Maurifius 131,852,844 52.03% 101,804,885 42.38%
United States of America 112,680,104 44.45% 129,883,495 54.21%
Luxembourg 8,929,029 3.52% 8,175,781 3.41%
253,431,977 100.00% 239,764,141 100.00%
1. OTHER PAYABLES

2821 2020

WUR MUR
Manager's fees 313,260 311,813
Trusiee's fees 54,152 188,564
Auditors' fees 126,500 123,625
Administraior's fees 38,157 38,889
Registry fees 38,157 33,989
Custodian's fees 30,283 30,048
Entry and exit fee 1,689 11,376
Taxfilling fees 20,700 14,850
Redemption payable 177,766 43,327
Unclaimed dividends for prior years 329,067 244,238
Other professional fees 8,625 15,083

1,140,356 1,059,112

The camrying amount of other payables approximate their fair value.

Other payables are unsecured, interest free and repayable within 3 months.



SBM UNIVERSAL FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

29,

12 TAXATION

Income tax is calculated at the rate of 15% (2020; 15%) on profit for the year as adjusted for Income tax
purposes.

{a) income tax liability/ (recoverable)

(b

o]

AL D1 July
Balance bif from SBM Unit frust
Charge for the year/ period

Tax paid during tha year/ period
Tax recovarable from MRA
Tax refund from MRA

Reversal of tax not recoverable
Overprovision of prior year

AL 30 June

Reconciliation of tax charge

Profit before tax

Tax reconcifiation at the tex rate of 15% (2020: 15%)
Tax eifect of:
Exempt income
Non-taxable income
Non deduciible expenses
Withholding tax suffered
Reversal of tax not recoverzble
Overprovision of prior year
Additienal tax paid on MRA assessment

Tax expense

Tax charge for the year

Overprovision of prior vear

Reversal of t2x not recoverable
Additional tax paid on MRA assessment

Tex expense

2021 2020
MLUR MUR
(459,578) .
. {159.347)
76,150 114,959
{(123,887) -
. (880,372)
562,125 -
88,247 245,082
(76,827) -
76,150 {458,578)
2021 2020
MUR MUR
3,575,625 2,087,383
536,344 313,107
{1,075,860) (416,128)
{34,539} {187,185)
650,205 379.827
- 25,518
98,247 -
(78,827) -
184,570 .
282,140 114,959
78,150 114,959
(76,827) -
88,247 -
184,570 -
282,140 114,959
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13.

14.

EN

18.

17,

18.

18.

20.

INTEREST INCOME AT EIR

2021 2020
MUR MUR
Interest on debt securities 4,990,823 2129826

MANAGER'S FEES

Manager's fees are computed daily based on 1% p.2 of net asset value (2020: 1% p.a of NAV) of the
Fund and are payable monthly in arrears.

TRUSTEE'S FEES

Trusteg's fees are computed dafly based on 0.085% p.a of nef asset value (2020: 0.085% p.a of NAY)
of the Fund plus VAT are payable monthly in arrears,

REGISTRY'S FEES

Registry's fees are computed dally based on 0.125% p.2 of net asset vajue {2020: 0.725% p.z of NAV)
of the Fund are payable monthly in arrears.

CUSTODIAN'S FEES

Custedian's fees are computed daily based on 0.08% p.a of investment value (2020: 0.06% p.a of
investment value) of the Fund plus transaction charges of MUR 100 for each local trade and EUR 20

for each foreign trade (2020: MUR 100 for 2ach local trade and EUR 20 for each foreign trade) and are
payable monthly in arrears,

ADMINISTRATOR'S FEES

Administrator's fees are computed daily based on 0,125% p.a of net asset value (2020 0.125% n.&of
NAV) of the Fund are payable monthly in arrears.

ENTRY FEE AND EXIT FEE

On the issue of units, an eniry fee of 1% of the net assets value {2020 1% p.2 of NAV) of the Fund
per unit is paid by the unitholdar to the Fund and, on the repurchase of unils, an exit fee of 1% of the
net asset value (2020: 1% p.a of NAV) of the Fund per unit is paid by the unithaldar fo the Fund. The
sums collected are then remitted o the Manager.

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

During the year ended 30 June 2021 and period 2nded 30 June 2020, the Fund transacted with related
entities. Defzils of the naiure, volume of transactions and balances with the enfities are shown below,

Bealances with related Fund Expenses
Period from
01 January
Year ended 2020 to
30 June 30 June
2021 2020 2021 2020
MUR MUR MUR MUR
S8M Mauritius Asset Managers Ltd
Manager's fess payable 313,26G 311,813 - -
Manager's fees - - 3,613,883 1,802,435

Eniry and exit fzes payable 1,688 11,376
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20. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

Balances with related

pariies Fund Expenses
Peried from
01 January
Year ended 2020 to
30 June 30 June
20214 2020 2021 2020
MUR MUR MUR MUR
SBM Fund Services Ltd
Administrator's fees payable 39,157 38.989
Administraior's fees 451,745 225,304
Registry fees payable 38,157 33,083
Registry fees 451,745 225,303
BTOS Trusiees Lig
Trustee's Tees payable 54,152 186,564
Trustee's Fees 313,188 155,520
SBM Bank {(Mauritius) Lid
Custodian feas payable 30,283 30,048
Custogy fees 352,635 273,487
Balances neld with Bank 18,574,538 27.329.463
Bank charges on bank balances 5,385 6.875
invesiment in yilimate holding comoany
3BM Holdings Ltd 8,427,823 9,427.823
interest income 172,013 -
Investment in other related parties
SBM India Fund 4,910,769 4,910,768
SBM Africa Value Fund Class A - 62,231
SBM Capiial Protected Note - 5,400,000

No compensaticn was paid 1o key management personnel during the year (period ended 30 June 2020: Nif)
Quistanding balances at the year end are unsecured. interast free and selflement occurs in cash.
There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party payabls.

21, FINANCIAL INSTRUNMENTS
214 Financial risk management
Risk is inherent in the Fund's activities and is managed through a process of ongoing identification,
measurement and monitering subject fo risk limits and other controls put in place at ths invesiment
manager company level. The Fund is exposed to market risk (which inciudes currency risk, interest rate

risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk arising from the financial instruments it holds. The Fund
has investment guidelines that set out its overall business sirategies and its telerance for risk.
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21, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {CONTINUED)
21.2 Significant accounting policies
Details of the significant accounting pelicies and meathods adopted (including the criteria for recognition, the

bases of measurement, and the bases jor recognition of income and expenses), for each class of financial
asset, inancial fiability and equity instrument are disclosed in note 3 to the financial statements.

21.3 Categories of financial instruments

2021 2020
MUR MUR
Financizl assets
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 236,925,521 254,654,256
Financizl asseis heid at amortised cost 77,351,732 53,243,964
Cash and cash egquivaients at amortised cost 18,575,538 7,328,463
Ciher receivables at amortised cost 1,385,780 527,955

394,209,571 357,755,838

Financial liabifities
Other payables at amortised cost 1,140,358 1,059,112

21.4 Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss resulting from adverse movement in market rates or prices such as inferest
rates, foreign exchange rates and squity prices.

21.5 Risk management

The Fund's credit risk is managed by the lnvestment manager subject to the Fund's estasbiished policy,
procedures and controls. The credit exposure is monitored by the invastment team and reported to the
Fund's board and Invesiment Commitiee on a quariedy basis, There are internal limits with respeci {o singls
issuer exposure, maximum sector exposure and the Fund will hold a diversified portfolic of securities in
mitigating overall porifolio credit risk. Invesiment-grade securities are mostly targeted in managing credit risk
but credit migration is monitored.

Foreign currency risk

The Fund invests in securities, including maintenznce of cash that are denominated in such currencies other
than in Mauritian Rupee ("MUR"). Accordingly. the value of the Fund's assats may be =ffected favourably or
unfavourably by fluciuations in currancy rates. Therefore, the Fund will necessarily be subject to foreign
exchange risk.

The currency profile of the Fund’s financizl assets and liabilities is summarised as follows:

2021 2020
Financial Financial Financizl Financial
assets liabilities assels liabilities
MUR MUR MUR MUR

Mauritius Rupsee 267,978,745 1,140,356 234,084,705 1,059,112
United States Dollar 116,384,718 - 112,891,803 -
Eurp 9,771,056 - 10,716,059 -
British Pounds 75,025 - 82,972 -
Austratian Dollar 26 - - -

384,208,571 1,140.358 357.755.839 1.058,112




SBM UNIVERSAL FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021 33.

21. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
21.5 Risk management (Continued)
Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The icliowing table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the exchange rate, with
2l other variables held constant, on the Fund's profit before tax and squity.

2021 2020
Increasel Effect on Increass! Efizcton
Decrease profit before Decrease profit before
percentage tax and equity percentage tax and equity
MUR MUR MUR MUR
United States Dollar 10%  (11,638,472) 10% 11,288,190}
-10% 11,838,472 -10% 11,289,190
Eure 0% {977,108) 10% (1.071.608)
-10% 977,108 -10% 1,071.808
British Pounds 10% (7,503) 0% (6,297}
-10% 7,503 -10% 8,297
Australizn Doliar 10% (3} 10% -
~10% 3 -10% -

Price sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis has been determined based on the exposurs to equily and bond price risks at the
reporting date and assesses the impact of & 5% change in the price of local and foreign investment.

Change in Change in
price by 2821 orice by 2020
% MUR % MUR
Profit before tax +5 14,846,278 +5 15,232,713

A fall in equity and bond prices by 5% would have resulted in an equal but opposite impact on nai assets.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect future cash flows or the
fair value of financial instruments.

The following table analyses the Fund's interest rate risk exposure:

2021 2020
MUR MUR
Variable rate asset
Local bonds 9.708.385 27.138.2158
Fixed rate assets
Locel bonds 84,230,898 82,697,864
Covaernment bonds 25,908,612 -

111,138,811 62,997.864

The Fund is exposed {o interest rate risk on its variable rate asssie,
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21. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
21.5 Risk management (Continued)
Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below assesses the impact of a change in interest rate over a 12-month period.

Change in
interest rate 2021 2020
% MUR MUR
Profit before tax + % 97,064 271,362

A decrease in interest rate by 1% would have resulied in an equal but opposite impact on profit before tax
and equity.

21.6 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the Fund by
failing to discharge an obligation. The Fund is exposed to the risk of credit-related losses that can occur as a
result of a counterparty or issuer being unable or unwilling to honour its contractual obligations. These credit
exposures exist within debt instruments, short-term frade receivables, and cash and cash equivalents.

The Investment Manager's policy is to closely monitor the creditworthiness of the Fund's counterparties by
reviewing their credit ratings, financial staiements and press releases on a regular basis.

Credit risk disclosures are segmented into two sections based on whether the underlying financial instrument
is subject to IFRS 9's impairment disclosures or not.

Financial assets subject to IFRS 9's impairment requirements

The Fund’s financial assets subject to the expected credit loss model within [FRS 9 are financial assets at
amortised cost and financial assets at FVOCI.

At 30 June 2021, the total financial assets at amortised cost was MUR 77,351,732 (2020: MUR 65,243,964),
on which a loss allowance of MUR 217,506 (2020: MUR 474,215) has been provided.

The total financial assets through other comprehensive income was MUR 43,493,544 (2020: MUR
24,890,115) on which a loss allowance of MUR 119,792 {(2020: MUR 114,537} has been provided.

There is not considered to be any concentration of credit risk within these assets. No assets are considered
impaired and no amounts have been written off in the year.

Impairment on cash and cash equivalents has been measured on a 12-month expected loss basis and
reflects the short maturities of exposures.The Fund considers that these exposures have low credit risk
based on the external credit rating of the counterparties. The Fund has assessed that ECL on cash and cash
equivalents is not considered to be material.

Probabilities of default have been used to calculate the loss allowance. The 12-month and lifetime
probabilities are based on historical data supplied by Moody or Standard and Peor for each credit rating and
are recalibrated based on current market prices. Loss given default parameters generally reflect an assumed
recovery rate of 55% to 65%. However, if the assets were creditimpaired, the estimate loss would be based
on a specific assessment of expected cash shortfalls and on the original effective interest rate. The loss on
financial assefs is detailed as follows:
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21. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

21.6 Credit risk (continued)

2021 Rating PD_1 LGD_1 MUR
Financial assets under amortised cost

Government bonds Baaz 0.0013 45% 16,097
Deposit with financial institutions A+ 0.0006 45% 2,665
Local bonds A1l-Unrated 0.0072-0.0137 37%-41% 198,743

Corporate Bond under FVOCI

Deposit with financial institutions Baz 0.0083 45% 83,134
Local bonds AAA - Aa3 0.0043 37% - 41% 36,658
TOTAL 337,298
2020

Financial assets under amoriised cost

Deposit with financial institutions Baa1 0.0083 45% 19,885
l.ocal bonds Unrated 0.0159 - 0.1948 41%-45% 248,429

Corporate Bond under FVOC/
Local bonds Unrated 0.0159 41% 320,438
TOTAL 588,752

Financial assets not subject to IFRS 9's impairment requirements

The Fund is not exposed to credit risk on its equity instruments. These classes of financial assets are not
subject to IFRS 9's requirements as they are measured at FVOCI. The carrying amount of these assets were
MUR 253,431,977 (2020: MUR 239,764,141) under [FRS 9 represents the Fund's maximum exposure to
credit risk on financial instruments not subject {0 IFRS 9 impairment requirements under respective reporting.

21.7 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Fund will encounter difficuity in meeting obligations associated with
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. Exposure to liquidity risk arises
because of the possibility that the Fund could be required to pay its liabilities or redeem its units earlier than
expected. The Fund is exposed to cash redemptions of its redeemable units on a regular basis. Units are
redeemable at the holder's oplion based on the Fund's NAV per unit at the time of redemption, calculated in
accordance with the Fund’'s prospectus. However, the Manager may limit the total number of units in the
Fund that may be redeemed on any business day to 10% of the outstanding units in the Fund.

- Searching for new invesiors

- Withdrawal of cash deposits

- Disposal of highly liquid assets (i.e., short-term, low-risk debt investments)
- Disposal of other assets

The Fund invests primarily in marketable securities and other financial instruments which, under normal
market conditions, are readily convertible to cash. In addition, the Fund’s policy is to maintain sufficient cash
and cash eqguivalents to meet normal operating requirements and expected redemption requests.
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21

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
21.7 Liquidity risk (Continued)
Financial liabilities

The maturity grouping is based on the remaining period from the end of the reporting pericd to the
contractual maturity date. When a counterparty has a cheice of when the amount is paid, the liability is
allocated to the earliest period in which the Fund can be required to pay.

Financial assets

Analysis of equity and debt securities into maturity groupings is based on the expected date on which these
assets will be realised. For other assets, the analysis into maturity groupings is based on the remaining
period from the end of the reporting period to the contractual maturity date or, if earlier, the expected date on
which the assets will be realised.

The following table summarises the maturity profile of the Fund’s financial liabilities based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows. The table also analyses the maturity profile of the Fund's financial assets
(undiscounted where appropriate} in order to provide a complete view of the Fund's contractual commitments
and liquidity.

Less than No stated

1 year 1to2years 2to5years Over5years maturity Total
2021 MUR MUR MUR MUR MUR MUR
Cash and cash
equivalents 18,576,538 - - - - 18,576,538
Other receivables 1,355,780 - - - - 1,355,780
Financial assets at
FVOCI

- - 27,973,003 15,520,541 253,431,977 296,925,521

Financial assets al
amortised cost 20,285,204 30,178,960 - 26,387,568 - 77,351,732

Total financial assets 40,217,522 30,178,960 27,973,003 42,408,109 253,431,977 394,209,571

Cther payables 1,140,356 - - - - 1,140,356
Total financial liabilities 1,140,356 - - - - 1,140,356
Liquidity gap 39,077,166 30,178,960 27,973,003 42,408,109 253,431,977 393,069,215
Less than 1 No stated

year 1to2years 2ioS5years Over5 years maturity Total
2020 MUR MUR MUR MUR MUR MUR
Cash and cash
equivalents 27,328,463 - - - - 27,329,463
Other receivables 527,056 . . - - 527 056
Financial assets at
FVOCI - - 14,425,690 10,464,425 239,764,141 264,654,256
Financial assets at
amortised cost 35,174,110 - 20,071,914 9,997,941 65,243,964
Total financial assets 63,031,529 - - - 239,764,141 357,755,639
Oiher payables 1,059,112 - - - - 1,059,112
Total financial liabilities 1,059,112 - - - - 1,059,112

Liquidity gap 61,972,417 - - . 239,764,141 356,696,527
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22,

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
21.8 Excessive risk concentration

Concentration indicates the relative sensitivity of the Fund's performance ito developments affecting a
particular industry or geographical location. Concentraticn of risks arises when a number of financial
instruments or contracts are entered into with the same counterparty or when a number of counterparties are
engaged in similar business activities, or activities in the same geographical region, or have similar economic
features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in
economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by
changes in economic political or other conditions. Concentrations of liguidity risk may arise from repayment
terms of financial liabilities. Concenirations of foreign exchange risk may arise if the Fund has a significant
net apen position in a single foreign currency. In order to avoid excessive concenfration of risk, the Fund's
pclicies and procedures include specific guidelines to focus on maintaining a diversified portfolio. The
investment manager is instructed io reduce exposure to excessive risk concentrations. The Fund shall not
invest more than 20% of its Net asset Value in securities issued by single issuer (a company on other
corporate entity including the subsidiaries thereof) at the time of purchase. The Fund shall not hold more
than 20% of any class of security listed or uniisted, issued by a single issuer.

COVID 19 IMPACT ASSESSMENT

The global public health crisis, the Covid-19, led to the shuidown of the giobal economy and prompted a
global equity market collapse in March 2020. The global policy response o cushion the coronavirus shock
has been unprecedented in terms of speed and size as policymakers supporied the economies by
committing to keep rates low and enabling an increasingly accommodative monetary as well as fiscal

The pandemic’s near-term evolution, containment measures, positive vaccine developments, dovish central
banks, however, improved market sentimeni and pushed equity markeis to all-time highs by the end of
financial year 2021.While the unprecedented policy response was needed to cushion the adverse impacts of
the Covid-19, the monetary and fiscal policies along with supply-chain disruptions raised infiationary
pressures. Extended high inflation rates may impact the path of interest rates, and hence equity and debt
markets, but drastic policy changes are not expected in the near-term.

While markets have rebounded strongiy in FY21, the potential impacts from further spread of the virus
despite the vaccination roll-outs are difficult io assess and may vary across countries, markets and sectors.
Any public health emergency, including any outbreak of Covid-19 mutations or other existing or new epidemic
diseases, or the threat thereof, and the resulting financial and economic market uncertainty could have a
significant adverse impact on the Fund including the fair value of its investments. External factors remain
beyond the Investment Manager's control and cannot be forecasted but they have adverse impacts on the
value of investments. With respect io SBM Universal Fund, its strategic allocation is 40% domestic fixed
income, 30% internaticnal equities and 30% domesiic equities. The impact of Covid-18 on investment value

Fixed income securities

Although Mauritius was downgraded by international agencies, the Investment Manager does nat expect
significant impacis on the carrying value of GOM securities as no sovereign default risk is currently
anticipated. The securities are valued under the hold-to-collect approach under IFRS 9 and expscted capital
losses are based on the rating of GoM which remains investment grade.

Most of the corporate bonds in the portfolio are issued by entities listed on the Stock Exchange of Mauritius.
The bonds are valued at fair value through comprehensive income and their market prices on the SEM would
reflect the underlying risks. Expected capital losses are based on the ratings of the issuer such that low-rated
issuers would carry higher default probability and hence higher ECL, and vice-versa. Credit risks are
managed through limits on issuer, diversified portfolio and limited concentrations. The underlying risks of the
issuers are regularly monitored.
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COVID 19 IMPACT ASSESSMENT {CONTINUED)
Equities

Listed equities and equity-related securities are valued at fair value using quoted prices. The economic
impact of Covid-19 is generally reflected in market price of those securities. Depending on the sector and
geography in which the companies, the Covid-19 had different magnitude on stock prices. Given the
diversification strategy, the risk is not concentrated and the portfolio impact is relatively lower compared to
concentrated strategies. As part of its process, the prices of those securities are closely monitored. Since the
Fund is invested in lisied securities and mutual funds, the Manager does not anticipate funding liquidity and
asset liquidity risks in the current conditions.

The Fund did not experience any disruption in terms of the cperations during the year due to the work-from-
home practices from the different functionaries. There was no increase in direct costs as conditions under the
existing contractual agreements continued to prevail.

Overall, the Fund has not been impacted in terms of significant redemptions.The Investment Manager
monitors closely the liquidity position of the Fund.

COMPARATIVES

The comparative figures relate to the period from 01 January 2020 io 30 June 2020.The figures disclosed in
the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and
statement of cashflows for the period ended 30 June 2020 are therefore not comparable.

DISTRIBUTION TO UNITHOLDERS

During the year ended 30 June 2021, the Fund made distributions to unitholders for FY 2021 amounting fo
MUR 4,759,329 (2020: Nil).

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING DATE

There has been no other material events after the reporting date which would require disclosure or
adjustment to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2021.



